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Fulfilling
The Parenting Dream

Combi makes your daily life more enjoyable and comfortable as we aim at bringing you a creative and
heart-warming lifestyle.
Since our establishment in 1957, we have adopted the above as our management philosophy, and we
have devoted ourselves to the development of childcare products and to the betterment of the entire
childcare industry.

Babies are the Family Dream
It is natural for families to harbor great hopes and dreams for their children, and we at Combi are
committed to creating an environment in which hopes and dreams are nurtured and eventually realized.
A shortening of the word "combination" which itself refers to the combination of mother and child, Combi

Brand Management
Ever since our establishment in 1957 we have been working hard to earn
the trust of consumers. We realize that the confidence the Combi brand
inspires is an important management resource, and in 2001 we decided
upon our brand platform (Vision, Mission, and Value). In 2002 we revised
our brand logo and renewed efforts to further increase our brand value
through overall brand management activities.

We put our heart and soul into the Combi brand.

Brand Mission
The role which the Combi brand
must fulfill in order to realize its Vision.

To share the joy of baby
care with everyone.

We distribute a brand book to all employees and hold an annual Brand Day
in order to share and communicate our brand vision with customers,
shareholders and employees, indeed with all our stakeholders, in the hope of
creating ever more Combi fans.
Of course, in our efforts to improve our brand value, we never lose sight of
our number one goal - to make useful and safe products for our customers.
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provides products and services that establish wholesome environments to support the healthy growth of
infants.
With our eyes on the global community, we are rapidly expanding from our core focus on mothers and
children into the overall life styles of families. We also plan a global expansion of our activities and efforts
in the area of"quality", "brand recognition" and "revitalization of people and organization".
Based upon our corporate standpoint as "The partner to create and support the joy of childcare",Combi
will take full advantage of state of the art advances and information technologies to improve our business
operations as well as our products. We believe that our activities in various areas will bring the world a
more enjoyable and comfortable lifestyle.

Brand Vision
The realizing of a Combi brand
world based on the concept of value.

To create a world where
people can enjoy and feel
happy about baby care.

The Combi logo expresses our intention to be a
company that can communicate the emotions of childcare
while also being a partner supporting childcare givers.
The design communicates the happiness,
pleasure, and excitement of childcare while also
expressing our high standards of
quality, reliability, and sophistication.

Brand Value
The value which the Combi brand
promises and delivers to customers
so that Combi can accomplish its Mission.

Functional value
Combi baby products are
"Helping Hands"to support those
who take part in baby care.

Emotional value
A Mother's (baby carer's)
Natural Smile.

Forward-Looking
Statements

Statements contained in this report regarding the plans, projections and strategies of the Combi Corporation and its subsidiaries and affiliates that comprise
the Combi Group (hereinafter "Combi") that are not historical fact constitute forward-looking statements on future financial results. As such, they are based on
data that are obtainable at the time of announcement in compliance with Combi's management policies and certain premises that are deemed reasonable by
Combi. Hence, actual results may differ in some cases
from these forward-looking statements due to changes in various factors, including but not limited to economic conditions in our principal markets, product
and service demand trends, and currency exchange rate fluctuations.
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To Our Shareholders
We like to think of the Combi Corporation as the parents' partner in raising
their children, and the Combi Group constantly strives to offer parents the
most innovative products possible. We incorporate the parents' viewpoint
in our planning and development approach, which is the core strength of
the Combi Group, and we are expanding our business globally to bring our
reliable, high-quality products to parents throughout the world. Through
this approach, we are making steady progress towards securing Combi's
position as a top industry innovator.

What was the business climate in this fiscal year?
In the Japanese market, the declining birthrate, policies that put pressure on
making distribution inventories smaller, and the increasing influx of foreignmade products made it difficult to expand sales by a wide margin.
However, we are successfully developing our overseas markets, and sales in
North America and Asia continued to climb. We also expect to see continued
improvements in profitability as we move forward.

How did Combi perform this fiscal year?
Consolidated results for the year ending March 2007 showed net sales at
¥27.16 billion, which was a 3.9% decline from the previous year, but
operating income, ordinary income, and net income were all up significantly.
The Group overall had a good showing.

What was behind this significant increase in income?
The primary factor was the radical retooling of our sales strategy, particularly
in the Japanese baby care business, by shifting from a strategy that
emphasizes sales volume to one that emphasizes profit margins. This was
complemented by a company-wide effort to reduce costs and make more
efficient use of expenditures. Overseas, our review of our product mix for the
North American market, sales channels upgrades, and stronger approaches
to specialist outlets have contributed to profits. In the Asian market, we
focused our sales efforts on specialty stores and large department stores and
increased the number of products available.
We also had special income this fiscal year from the sale of our interest in
consolidated subsidiary Combi Wellness Corporation to Konami Corporation,
which earned an additional ¥456 million.
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President and CEO,

Hiromasa Matsuura
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Consolidated Financial Highlights
Combi Corporation and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31
Millions of Yen

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2006

2007

2007

Fiscal Year
Net sales
Operating income
Net income for the year

¥ 28,281
△ 309
△ 868

¥ 27,164
1,539
1,321

$ 230,114
13,040
11,196

As of March 31, 2007
Total shareholder’s equity
Total assets

¥ 16,087
27,385

¥ 16,723
27,804

$ 141,668
235,535

Per-share Data
Net income for the year
Total shareholders’ equity
Dividends paid

¥ △ 48.36
896.00
10.00

¥ 74.49
970.11
25.00

$ 0.631
8.217
0.211

Notes: 1. Figures for per-share data are based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the fiscal year.
2. For convenience, yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars at an exchange rate of US$1=¥118.05, as of March 31, 2007.
3. The figures in the above summary and the financial statements in this annual report (including any notes) are, in principle, expressed
in millions of yen or thousands of U.S. dollars, rounded down to the nearest million or thousand.
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What is Combi’s vision for the future?
The Group is operating on the “2010 Vision," which focuses on three areas:
●Establishing World Leadership as the top "innovative"Brand
●Becoming the Worldwide Leader in Quality
●Creating the World's most efficient Organization and Employees

We will work on these three areas to build Combi into a global company
centered on our flagship baby care business.
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What is the strategy and product mix for the domestic baby care business?
The Group is developing products that are convenient, comfortable, and
safe, to create a world where people can enjoy and feel happy about
babycare. The cornerstone products in this lineup are the next-generation 3wheel baby stroller Thruller, which was based on a design by the BMW
Group Design Works USA and is both attractive and functional. It can be
unfolded with one hand. There is also the baby carrier Magical Compact,
which can be put on in about 15 seconds, and the infant car seat called
"Separate ," with a palette structure that allows the base and seat to be
separated. It can be secured in the car by anyone quickly and easily.
Through its customer-focused marketing, Combi will continue to offer
products tailored to the lifestyle and diverse needs of today’s parents.

Next-generation 3-wheeled baby stroller,
Thruller

The Separate car seat

The global business is being emphasized as a driver of growth
for the Group. Could you tell us about the results obtained in
each region and what your strategy is for the future?

Magical Compact

In Asia, our Hong Kong subsidiary continued its efficient management style
and maintained its profitability, and net sales in the region continued to grow,
with ¥17.46 billion (14% increase year-on-year) in net sales for the region as a
whole.
We will continue to review our line-up and introduce new products, refine the
Combi brand, and increase customer appeal to maintain our current pace of
growth.
In the North American region, we achieved turnover of 2.168 billion yen
(a 41.8% increase compared to the same period in the previous year) by
strengthening our merchandising and expanding our sales channels.
We will also focus on the boutique sales channel, continue to expand our
market share, and establish the Combi brand in the middle-to-upper income
bracket market. In addition, we will bolster our merchandising efforts and put
more effort into advertising and promotion in order to increase net sales and
income.
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In accordance with our management
philosophy, we will adopt the following
code of conduct in our business activities
and work to raise the value of our
company and contribute to the creation of
a happy society.
1. We will not forget that Combi's basic goal is
to share the joy of baby care with everyone.
[Principles]
2. We will satisfy our customers and gain their
trust by developing and providing valuable,
high-quality products and services.
[Customers]
3. We will comply with laws at home and
overseas, compete fairly and freely, and
continue to preserve society's confidence in
us. [All stakeholders]
4. We will build an environment that fully uses
the talents of our employees. [Employees]
5. We will release information about and
maintain a high level transparency in our
corporate activities. [Shareholders]
6. We will address the preservation of the
global environment and natural resources
as an important management issue.
[Society]
7. Top management will do everything in its
power to put this code into practice.
[Management intention]

Authorization mark "Kurumin"

Can you tell us about Combi's CSR-related environmental
activities and the company's corporate governance?
The Group is tackling a number of environmental issues to help preserve the
global environment for the next generation and those who are caring for them
now. In 1998, our Saitama factory was the first in the baby care products
industry to acquire ISO 14001 certification.
In 2005, we were the first in the baby care products industry to achieve
certification for all our business offices. Currently, we are working to
implement environmental education activities at the day care centers
operated by CombiWith Corporation and achieving certification at all our
facilities nationwide.
Corporate governance and fair management practices are important, and it is
important to maintain the highest level of management transparency for our
stakeholders and to ensure a management structure that can quickly
respond to changes in the environment. To that end, we have external
directors on the board and a special administration system, and starting last
year, we established a corporate code of conduct.
In April 2007, the Minister of Health, Labour, and Welfare awarded Combi the
Kurumin seal, which is given to companies that help support the rearing of
children. This award was established by the Law for Measures to Support the
Development of the Next Generation. We were the first to implement
maternity leave for men, and we have as part of our brand vision the concept
of creating a world where people can enjoy and feel happy about baby care.

What is the outlook for Combi in the fiscal year ahead?
Though the environment we find ourselves in is difficult at best, we will put
our attention on reviewing our sales policies, developing products for a new
lifestyle, and running a cost efficient operation to achieve steady growth and
ensure profitability.
Through these actions, we expect to achieve consolidated sales of ¥27.7
billion, operating income of ¥13 billion, ordinary income of ¥1.04 billion, and
net income of ¥770 million in fiscal 2008.
This year also marks our 50th anniversary, and I sincerely hope that our
stakeholders will continue to give us their unwavering support.

President and CEO,
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Hiromasa Matsuura

Environmental Activities
■Combi's Environmental Policy
In October 2004, Combi revised its environmental policy to assist in achieving
consolidated certification for the entire company. The basic philosophy of this policy is
to make Combi a company that enriches people's lives through a healthy family by
making all business activities environmentally sound and thus contributing to
preserving the irreplaceable global environment for the next generation. To help us
achieve this goal, we have created the five guidelines in our code of conduct.

■Our Track Record as a Leader in the Baby Care Industry
In 1998 our Saitama factory became the first in the baby care industry to acquire ISO
14001 certification. Since then, we have been an industry leader in global
environmental protection activities. The Company then transferred its expertise in this
area to all offices, factories, and group companies, with the resulting certification of
CombiWith Corporation (2000), Tsukuba Distribution Center (2001), and the MinamiUrawa Techno Center (2002). We also expanded our environmental management staff
by acquiring two CERA registered environmental management system survey
assistants through the Japan Environmental Management Association for Industry.

■Another First in the Baby Care Industry
In November 2005, Combi acquired consolidated ISO 14001 certification for all
locations in Japan. We also made progress on reducing our environmental footprint in
all processes, from development to production and distribution.

■ISO 14001 Certification Status
December 1998
December 2000
December 2001
March 2002
December 2002
November 2005
January 2006
December 2006
Fiscal 2007

Saitama factory (first in the baby care industry)
CombiWith Corporation
Tsukuba Distribution Center
Minami-Urawa Techno-Center
CombiWith Corp. Combi Plaza Nursery school
Daycare (Nakano Nursery school expanded certification)
Combi Corporation (Consolidated certification for all Japan locations)
CombiWith Corp. Combi Plaza Nursery school
(Momoi Nursery school expanded certification)
CombiWith Corp. Combi Plaza Nursery school
(Expanded certification for 10 facilities)
CombiWith Corp. Combi Plaza Nursery school
(Scheduled for expanded certification of two new facilities)

Combi's Environmental
Action Symbol
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E n v i r o n m e n t a l

P o l i c y

Basic Philosophy Based on its corporate stance of being a partner that supports baby care givers and
promoting the wonderful experience of baby care, Combi as an enterprise creating healthy
and affluent family lifestyles, will strive to harmonize with the natural environment in the
course of all of its business activities and contribute to the handover of the priceless global
environment to future generations.

Action Guidelines 1.We will verify the environmental impact of all of our business activities, encompassing
development, production, logistics, and sales and will ensure continuous improvements.
2.We will perform product assessments and will endeavor to offer environmentally-friendly
and safe products.
3.We will conduct environmental education and training, and each and every one of us at
every workplace will strive to promote resource saving and energy conservation.
4.We will comply with environmental laws and regulations and will act as a good corporate
citizen.
5.We will disclose our environmental initiatives in a proper manner and will endeavor to
maintain favorable communication with society.

October 19, 2004

President and CEO, Hiromasa Matsuura

■Combi's Environmentally Friendly Products
Combi has its own standard for environmentally friendly
products that regulates things like resource usage, product life,
and environmentally friendly materials. Products that meet this
standard carry the Combi Eco Seal and are promoted as such.
Combi Eco Label

Product details

Atopi-Mate
medicinal
baby body soap
(refill pack)
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Atopi-Mate
medicinal
baby shampoo
(refill pack)

Combi baby
diaper soap
(liquid refill pack)

Combi baby
diaper soap
(powder)

Environmental
impact category

Refillable containers

Recycling used
cooking oil as soap

Environmental
impact

Natural resource

Recycling

■Major Environmental Themes in Fiscal 2007
Combi's environmental management activities reduce our burden on the environment
in many areas, including product development, production, distribution, and sales.
The entire company is involved in daily environmental activities that are linked to our
main business activities.
Administration

Functional
Foods

Sales

●

●

R&D of new technology for more efficient use of natural resources

●

Reduce ratio of wasted catalogs and leaflets

Pursue natural
resource and
energy conservation

Marketing

Development of packaging and products that are environmentally friendly

Production
& distribution

Supply safe,
environmentallyfriendly products

Major environmental themes

Technology
& development

Environmental policy

Child wear

Baby toys

●

●

Reduce product waste and returns

●

Reduce dead stock retained inventory

●

●

Be more environmentally conscious

●

Improve operational efficiency

●

Reduce amount of copy paper used

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

Reduce amount of electricity used

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

Reduce amount of industrial waste

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

Comply with
regulations

Prepare for disasters and strengthen crisis management

Communication
with the community

Give the public information on environmental activities

●

Strengthen control of chemicals

●
●

Expand services that use the Web

●
●

■Community Contributions
For a long time now, Combi has contributed to the local community through
community cleaning activities at its Saitama Factory, Tsukuba Distribution Center, and
the Minami-Urawa Techno Center. These activities were expanded on May 18, 2007
with the introduction of Combi Brand Day, a day on which all locations worldwide
participate in cleaning up their local communities. On this day, many Combi
employees express our thanks to the community by going out to parks and other
areas frequented by mothers and children, and cleaning them.

▲America

▲China

▲Saitama Factory

■Environmental Activities at Combi Plaza Nursery school
CombiWith Corporation, a member of the Combi Group,
has completed ISO 14001 certification on all 12 of its
daycare centers, and they recognize the importance of
environmental education activities. In fiscal 2007, they
added two new facilities to their list of participating
locations.
▲Daycare center: plastic bottles are reused
as planters.
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Combi at a glance

Development, production,
and sales of juvenile product & toy
■ Marketing in North America
Combi USA, Inc.
U.S.A.
■ Marketing in Korea
Combi (Korea) Co., Ltd.
Korea
■ Marketing in China
Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
China

■ Marketing and production control in
Southeast Asia
Combi Asia Limited
Hong Kong
■ Production
Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toy Co., Ltd.
China
Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd.
China

■ Marketing in Taiwan
Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.
Taiwan
Combi's overseas operations focus on the Asian and North American regions. Excluding
Japan, Combi has four sales companies and two production companies in Asia. In North
America, the Company has a sales company.
Sales are growing in both overseas regions. The Company sees these regions as drivers
of growth for the Combi Group and is implementing appropriate strategies.

●Looking at regional sales, sales in North America soared in the fiscal year under review,
increasing 41.8% year on year.
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Strollers,High chairs,
Child car seats, nursing products
Baby tableware, skin care products
Baby carriers, baby shoes, baby toys

The juvenile product and toy business is
Combi’s core business, and as one of
the industry leaders in Japan, we provide
safe and convenient products such as
strollers, child car seats, and high chairs.

●New Products: Thruller stroller with
one-hand unfolding, Magical Compact
child carrier that can be worn in 15
seconds, and the separate child seat
with detachable seat and base.

Development, production,
and sales of baby wear

Development, production,
and sales of functional foods

CombiWith Corporation
Child Care Environment Support

Baby wear, maternity wear,
baby underwear, baby bedding,
bedding accessories

Heated lactic acid bacteria EC-12
E.F. Power
Oxykine/Glisodin
Hoyactive
Collacalla

Proposals for baby rest areas and
playrooms at daycare centers and other
locations
Washroom facilities (Baby Keep, Baby
Sheet, Universal Sheet)
Baby strollers for stores and other
locations, nursery school management,
daycare and baby-sitting facilities

Combi entered the child wear business
in the autumn of 2000 with the
introduction of the Combi Mini brand.
Our direct sales approach uses catalogs
and the Internet to reach customers, and
even with a declining birthrate in Japan,
we have maintained a consistently high
growth rate.

The functional foods business develops
food product materials and functional
foods for health-related products. The
business focuses on R&D to develop
unique ingredients for other companies,
with the aim of building a stably
expanding B-to-B business.

Managed by Combi's subsidiary,
CombiWith Corporation, this business
provides products and services
designed to support mother and child
when they are outside the home.
Products include Baby Keep and Baby
Sheet, and services include
management of Combi Plaza nursery
schools.

●Combi acquired patents on its Wrap
Crotch child wear in 2004 and on the
Wrap Compact in May of 2006.
Patents in the child wear industry are
very rare, and our patent strategy
helps to further differentiate Combi
products from those of competitors.

●Our flagship product, heated lactic acid
bacteria EC-12, has become the talk of
the livestock industry. Using this
biological material, Combi is developing
sales of livestock feed in partnership
with a major trading company.
●Net sales were in the hundreds of
millions of yen, and the business
showed a profit for the year ending
March 2007.

●The mainstay products for this
business are Baby Sheet and Baby
Keep. Baby Sheet is a diaperchanging station used in public
restrooms, while Baby Keep provides
a secure place to put babies when
inside the restroom stall with the
parent. The company also designs
and builds baby rest areas and
playrooms.
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Global Business Development
■Sales by Geographical Area (Asia)
Unit: Millions of yen
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Combi (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

Dong Guan Combi
Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd.

■Sales by Geographical Area (North America)
Unit: Millions of yen
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The Asian region is serviced by Combi Asia Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Combi
Corporation. Combi Asia Limited oversees the production for the entire group, as well as
handling sales for the Asian region.
Sales in the Southeast Asian region grew this year with particularly solid growth in Hong
Kong. This was attributed to a broader range of products in the middle to upper price
range, more emphasis on displays and product booths to show off the expanded lineup,
and an improved Combi brand image.
Sales in the China region are handled mainly by Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. The
company significantly increased profitability by building sales channels and constantly
reviewing the product mix, and it now serves as a model of profitability for the whole
group.
Production in the China region is split between Dong Guan Combi Stroller Co., Ltd., and
Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd. Production is performed in two locations to reduce
risk, with all products produced at both locations . To hedge against the risk of potential
currency fluctuations and material and labor cost increases, we are working daily to
improve productivity and reduce costs while maintaining high quality.

●North America
Top line sales increased to a little over US$19 million in 2007. This represented a 34%
sales increase. This increase can be credited to our continued commitment to our
mission of delivering quality products that are both lightweight and portable. The
consumer awareness of Combi continues to grow as we are directing our marketing
efforts in many diverse and unique ways. One of the most successful ways of doing this
is driving consumers to our web site. It is state of the art in our industry and does a great
job educating the consumer on the benefits of our product line. This is extremely
important as we continue to find ways to strengthen our relationships with our specialty
shops and Internet dealers.

Combi Asia Limited
Chairman
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Sei Kasai

We strategically created our 2007-product line with margin enhancement as a major
focus. We succeeded in this and combined with our top line sales increase and strict
budget management we were able to post a nice profit.

Combi USA, Inc.

Actions for Fiscal 2008
■China
Under a management team made up of executives from Japan, China, Taiwan, and
Hong Kong, we will continue to reinforce our policy of focusing on profitability, expanding
the product lineup, and increasing sales channels with the aim of further expanding
sales.
■Taiwan
We will continue to focus on profitability, market development including direct sales, and
brand strength.
■Hong Kong
We will leverage the special characteristics of this small market, and use it to test new
marketing programs for new products and sales methods. It will also serve as a
showroom for the Chinese market and help increase brand penetration there.
■North America
・Be true to our mission statement-Lightweight, portable and high quality.
・Target specialty stores and Internet dealers to continue our positive sales growth
and continue our positive steps in stabilizing our margins.
・Continue to build the Combi brand. We will engage the consumer around the
country face to face as well as using conventional print ads to further our message
to the consumer.
・Continue to be a leader in delivering innovative and safe lightweight products. We
believe "Product is King" and we will work tirelessly to maintain a high emphasis on
product development with a dedicated commitment to safety and quality.
・Continue our efforts of strict budget control and profitability.
・We fully expect continued top line sales growth and profitability going forward.

Combi USA, Inc
Director President

Rob Conely
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Ever since we started doing business in 1961, our Juvenile product
business has led the way. With the Swan Potty in the 60s and the
Sandra Stroller in the 70s we have always tried to understand
customer needs and offer safe yet innovative products and services.
From our signature baby products "like strollers, car safety seats, and
high chairs" to baby bottles, baby tableware, and toys, we continue to
expand our business as a comprehensive manufacturer of child care
products.
■Market Environment
In the juvenile products market here in Japan we are seeing a distribution system
controlled by a few companies, a continuing tendency towards price reduction, and the
rising influence of overseas manufacturers. However, there was also good news,
though the birthrate continues to decline, the number of children born increased for the
first time in six years in 2006, and this was good news.
In the midst of these developments, consumer preferences and lifestyles are becoming
more and more diversified, and we are seeing an increasing polarization in the market
towards either low-priced or high-priced goods. Consumers are also much more likely
nowadays to place great value on design features and not only consider price and
specifications when making purchasing decisions. At the Combi Group, we are
determined to remain ahead of the curve in perceiving customer tendencies and
distribution changes as we focus our efforts on maintaining our leading role in the
juvenile products industry by offering high value added goods and superior service.
Sales (Unit: Million yen)
20,000

■Activities in Fiscal 2007
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5,000
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A pillar of our sales strategy is our effort to promote "Marketing from the Customer's
Point of View." In terms of sales policy this means that we consider different types of
lifestyles and the diversity of customers' needs in the products we offer.（＊） Also, in
November 2006 we introduced the convenient and incredibly easy to use baby carrier,
the Magical Compact, which takes only 15 seconds to put on. In February 2007 we
introduced the Thruller, an easily handled next-generation stroller with superior design
and functionality. These and other high-value-added products have contributed greatly
to our recent increases in profitability. In our toy business, we introduced the "Selectable
Melody" baby mobile in September 2006. Using a cellular phone, the customer can
replace the melody played by the mobile with any of the more than 4,000 melodies
downloadable from a special website. In November 2006 we acquired a license from
world famous Studio Ghibli for the characters from the wildly popular "My Neighbor
Totoro" series. We are very excited about this and intend to develop this new business
area by focusing on marketing to department stores.

Retail stores are vitally important as the point of customer contact. As we face new
challenges, we are aiming to "blaze a new trail to the next generation's baby movement"
and have begun our specialized Visual Merchandising (VMD) and created a VMD display.
Sales for our juvenile product & toy business through March 2007 were down 5% from
last year to ¥15,265 million. However, our focus on "Marketing from the Customer's
Point of View" and the shift in emphasis from low-priced goods to high-value-added
products has borne fruit and provided a stable foundation in allowing us to realize
improved gross profits and stable earnings.
（＊）Product line themes: Excellence, Natural, and Enjoyment
For Excellent: For those seeking luxurious childcare and fashionable, elegant, and superior design
For Natural: For those seeking comfortable, warm, simple, and natural design
For Enjoyment: For those seeking stylish, colorful, popular design

Thruller

"Selectable Melody"

"My Neighbor Totoro" series

Magical Compact
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■Actions for Fiscal 2008
We will continue to expand our selection of products to meet consumers’ diverse
needs. We will be adding products to our lineup that are appropriate for our
increasingly fashion and fitness conscious customers. By announcing new high-valueadded products and further improving, indeed, re-inventing our existing value-added
products we will be strengthening the Combi presence in the marketplace. One
important resource we use in reinforcing our Combi brand is by listening very carefully to
the input and comments of the 187,000 members of our Combi Town website
(www.combibaby.com). As the ways in which consumers purchase juvenile products
become more varied, we must adapt to changing customer preferences. We are
resolutely determined to seek out new frontiers and sales channels and develop ever
better and more useful products.
We are engaged in an active promotional campaign including advertisements and retail
store promotions in order to convey to customers exactly how our products are
developed.
In particular, the retail store promotion activities that we began in the early part of the
fiscal year have emphasized the expansion of the VMD display. The VMD display is the
critical point of contact between the customer and Combi, and we are working to turn it
into a space to transmit information and spread the message about our various nationwide services.
Past reorganizations have been undertaken with the goal of creating greater efficiencies
and improving overall operations. In our most recent reorganization, as of this year the
toy business has been integrated with the juvenile business to maximize the potential of
the juvenile business. The goal is also to increase efficiency and ensure that both the
juvenile and toy business dominate their markets.
With our campaign to promote “Marketing from the Customer’s Point of View,” we are
forecasting sales of ¥15,340 million this fiscal year.

VMD Corner
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The Combi Mini brand was introduced in the fall of 2000 with the
fundamental concept of providing child wear that brightens the smile
on a baby’s face. Combi entered the child wear market with this brand
mainly through catalog shopping. Combi’s functional child wear,
represented by the unconventional Wrap Crotch, and its reasonable
pricing have won the hearts of customers. As a result, the Combi Mini
brand has firmly established itself in the child wear industry, an
industry known for its lack of brand differentiation.
■Market Environment
According to our research, the overall size of the Japanese apparel market for children
up to about 12 years of age is estimated to be ¥680 billion, of which the infants and
toddlers (ages 0 to 3) sector accounts for ¥120 billion and the newborns sector about
¥25 billion. Competition in the child wear industry is getting ever more ferocious, and
only those brands that can adapt to ever changing consumer needs and offer superior
products will survive.
It is increasingly difficult to maintain and expand market share, but we are relying on our
superior design, our ability to develop products with outstanding functionality, and a
delicate balance between high quality and low price. These qualities and skills allow us
to continue to earn the trust of our customers and therefore maintain steady sales.

■Activities in Fiscal 2007
We continue to run a special gift campaign for our leading newborn product, the Wrap
Crotch (patent acquired in October 2004). We are also running a pilot campaign for our
Wrap Compact (patent acquired in May 2006). These and other efforts are part of our
push to introduce Combi Mini quality to legions of potential new customers and to earn
ever more new Combi Mini fans.
In addition to our popular mainstay products, we have introduced various sub-brands in
attractive styles and colors to strengthen our ability to offer products that meet the
differing expectations of our customers.
To make sure that we accurately communicate the functionality and overall concept of
Combi’s Child wear, we only sell through catalogs or Internet shopping. Our sincere
desire is to produce for our customers the perfect product with the exact functionality in
the exact style they want exactly at the time or season they want it.
As of the end of March 2007, we now have about 520,000 registered members of the
Combi Mini “Mail Mama Club.”

Sales (Unit: Million yen)
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2,000

1,000

0

FY
2006

FY
2007

FY
2008
(Projected)

17

■Actions for Fiscal 2008
We are grateful that the Combi Mini brand is a well-recognized brand in the baby
apparel industry. Even so, this year we want to emphasize the importance of going
back to basics with the theme of “Cherishing the initial meeting with customers.”
In the period ending March 2007, about 50% of our customer orders came from either
the Internet or mobile phone websites. We intend to increase our efforts to utilize the
Internet and mobile phone websites as means for gathering information about
customers. We will increase our use of the Internet to transmit information, and we will
increase the convenience of the Combi Mini website.
In April 2006 we introduced a Combi Mini brand stroller, baby seat, and other products
as we continue our expansion into bedding, interior products, and others. We will be
expanding our business focus from just child wear to direct marketing of many baby
products and further establish the Combi Mini brand as a major player in the industry.
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The philosophy of our Functional Foods business is to “support families
in their efforts to lead wholesome lives,” and with that philosophy in
mind, we focus on “food,” the foundation of a healthy and rich lifestyle.
With an emphasis on strengthening the immune system, antioxidants,
and anti-aging, we are engaged in joint research with both universities
and research institutes. We are developing food ingredients and
functional foods based on the scientific data produced by our research.
We are committed to making a positive contribution to society by
helping improve our customers’ quality of life through our reliable and
safe materials and products.

Collocalia Powder

Lactic Acid Bacteria Powder
(EC-12)

■Market Environment
With the retirement of the baby boomer generation there is an ever-increasing awareness of
health and a desire to lead a healthy lifestyle, evidence of which can be seen in the overall
expansion of the health food industry in recent years. This is noteworthy because during Japan’s
period of economic stagnation, there were very few markets that saw any growth at all.
Meanwhile, various issues have impacted our entire society in recent years such that, now more
than ever, our rigorous and absolutely faithful commitment to quality serves us in good stead.

■Activities in Fiscal 2007
Heated Lactic Acid Bacteria (EC-12) is being analyzed to test its effectiveness in treating intestinal
disorders and in preventing infection. It is also increasingly being seen in general food products as
well as in health foods. Additionally, a new use is being examined in which Lactic Acid Bacteria
(EC-12) may be effective in eliminating resistant bacteria in domesticated livestock, and, as a
result, sales of animal feed with this use in mind are steadily increasing. Oxykine/Glisodin is being
tested and seems to be highly effective in removing free radicals, suppressing cancer metastasis,
improving complications from diabetes and controlling rheumatism. In addition to being used in
the anti-oxidant category of food materials, we are also developing an edible cosmetic material
with Oxykine/Glisodin, which has been shown to be effective in preventing aging of the skin. Also,
Collocalia (extracted from the Enka, a swallow indigenous to the south China coastal area) has
been shown to be effective as an anti-viral, and we have seen its application expanding to the
beauty care industry.

Oxykine grains

Sales (Unit: Million yen)
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■Actions in Fiscal 2008
Our Functional Foods business derives its identity and separates itself from our competitors by
using reliable and safe materials to develop products that are based on solid scientific evidence.
With our philosophy to “support families in their efforts to lead wholesome lives,” we are actively
working to develop OEM products that can be used in everyday foods as we look forward to
continued steady growth thanks to our unique identity in this high-value-added industry.
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The goal of our Childcare Environment Support Business is “to care for
both the caregiver and child outside of the home.” We design all our
products with this sincere desire in mind and, with the two pillars of our
External Support business and our Childcare business, we continue to
develop on both the hard and soft side as we move forward confidently.
When diaper changing stations first appeared, they were only seen in
women’s bathrooms, but now it is perfectly normal for them to also be
seen in men’s bathrooms. Also, in the midst of the ever-increasing
numbers of women in the workplace and the societal impact caused by
the large numbers of children on waiting lists to get into childcare, the
childcare business being developed by CombiWith Corporation are
receiving high marks from various quarters.
■Market Environment

Sales (Unit: Million yen)
3,000

2,682

The government is currently examining several policies and mechanisms to counter the falling
birthrate and support the next generation here in Japan. Among the issues being examined
across a broad spectrum of fields are detailed and specific measures to forecast the ways in
which people will work in the future, community parenting support, social security and education.
Measures are also being taken to increase the number of preschool facilities (including privately
run facilities) to reduce the number of pupils on waiting lists to zero nationwide. Industry also has
an obligation to take concrete action to adjust action plans and policies in order to improve the
employment environment. Self-governing entities, industry, and commercial entities are also
taking decisive steps to, among other things, improve childcare facilities. All of these
developments together combine to serve as a strong tail wind spurring on both our External
Support business and our childcare business to even greater success.
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Diaper Changing Station

■Activities in Fiscal 2007
●With regard to our External Support business,
Government policies have served as a spur to action, and there has been an increasing
standardization of facilities for parents taking children around town, such as baby lounges, play
areas, and Baby Rests in bathrooms. Also, in response to a request from Central Japan
Railway, we are jointly developing a specially designed baby seat for narrow spaces for their
shinkansen, the renowned bullet train. Whatever the requirements may be, we are always
proactive about ensuring that our products meet the full range of our customers' needs. While
our External Support business started with bathroom Diaper Changing Stations and bathroom
stall-safe Baby Rest's, we have recently redoubled our efforts to develop comprehensive plans
for baby lounges and play areas as part of a total package of products and services that
support parents when they are out and about with their children.
Our shopping cart, the Angel Wagon, which makes shopping incredibly convenient and can be
used even for newborns, is a very common sight at shopping centers all over the country. A
new product designed for use by the restaurant industry that has recently come to market is a
baby seat called a "Booster Seat." Another exciting new product is the Playpark, an easily set
up play unit. With their superior safety, excellent functionality, and outstanding design, we
expect sales of both to take off in the coming years.
●Childcare business
More and more women are working out of the home today, and in order to offer the best
support and provide the best products and services we are working on the so-called "soft" side
of the Childcare business. In particular we are focusing on developing our ability to manage
nursery school, provide babysitters and offer day care.
Due to a proactive government policy, we expect to see changes in the childcare industry. In
addition to the conventional public preschools and social welfare preschools, private industry is
expected to move into the childcare field. We will also see a merger between kindergartens and
daycare centers. We began operation of two new nursery schools in April 2006 and are now
running a total of 14 nursery schools (as of March 2007) and continue to receive very high
marks from the authorities.

■Actions in Fiscal 2008
In our External Support business, we are aggressively working to develop and design new
products to further improve the childcare environment as we aim to expand our markets. As we
maintain and reinforce our sales system, we will also be looking to broaden our sales area
beyond Japan by building the strong foundation necessary for operations to succeed overseas.
On the Preschool business front, in April of 2007 we opened our fifteenth preschool, Towa 3Chome Preschool (fully licensed facility) in Adachi ward, Tokyo. While maintaining our strict
commitment to "the highest quality childcare," we fully intend to continue working to meet the
demand for products and services. In recent years
numerous companies have been making more and more
generous allowances in their employee welfare and
benefit programs for employees raising children, and as
the demand for on-site day care has continued to rise,
operations are being augmented.
The sales target for the External Support business and
the Preschool business for fiscal 2008 is ¥2,682 million.
Combi Plaza Nursery School
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FINANCIAL SECTION
Consolidated 5-Year Summary
Combi Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries

Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2007

¥29,643

¥28,824

¥30,149

¥28,281

¥27,164

$230,114

Cost of sales

16,128

15,473

16,299

16,329

15,181

128,606

Gross profit

13,514

13,351

13,850

11,952

11,982

101,507

11,480

11,791

12,209

12,261

10,443

88,466

2,034

1,559

1,640

(309)

1,539

13,040

877

861

1,513

(868)

1,321

11,196

¥15,610

¥15,723

¥16,776

¥16,087

16,723

141,668

27,116

26,430

28,516

27,385

27,804

235,535

¥ 47.80

¥ 47.18

¥ 84.30

¥ (48.36)

¥ 74.49

$ 0.631

868.23

874.87

934.35

896.00

970.11

8.217

25.00

20.00

20.00

10.00

25.00

0.211

¥26,589

¥25,604

¥27,009

¥25,275

¥25,251

$213,901

3,053

3,220

3,140

3,006

1,913

16,212

¥29,643

¥28,824

¥30,149

¥28,281

¥27,164

$230,114

¥27,889

¥26,826

¥27,750

¥25,219

¥23,250

$196,957

Asia

912

1,318

1,426

1,532

1,746

14,791

North America

841

679

972

1,529

2,168

18,365

¥29,643

¥28,824

¥30,149

¥28,281

¥27,164

$230,114

Fiscal Year
Net sales

Selling, general and
administrative expense
Operating income
Net income

As at the End of the Fiscal Year
Total shareholders’ equity
Total assets

Per share data (yen and U.S. dollars)
Net income
Total shareholders’ equity
Dividends paid

Sales by business segment
Baby Care Products and Toys
Health Care Products
Total

Sales by geographical segment
(Excluding intersegment sales)
Japan

Total

Notes: 1. Figures for per share data have been computed based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the fiscal year.
2. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥118.05 as of March 31, 2007.

The figures provided for in the above summary and the financial statements (including Notes) available in this annual report are in principle indicated
in millions of yen or thousands of U.S. dollars after omitting amounts below one million and one thousand, respectively.
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Financial Review
Performance

earnings at a stable level. In addition, our Chinese sub-

In the fiscal year ending March 31, 2007, the economy

sidiary was in the black, with both increased income

continued its upward trend, supported by steady con-

and earnings supported primarily by supplying baby

sumer spending and strong capital investment spurred

strollers to the U.S. market.

by a recovery in corporate earnings. Overseas, there

In the functional foods business, lactic acid,

were concerns about high oil prices and a feared

Collocalia, and other food ingredients continue to

slowdown in the U.S. economy as the housing market

show strong sales. However, in the fitness and health-

there continues its correction; however, the Asian

care business, sales to companies outside the Combi

region remained bright, with continued high growth

consolidated group fell as a result of the transfer of

supported primarily by the Chinese economy.

shares of consolidated subsidiary Combi Wellness

The Combi Group continued to develop, produce,
and sell high-value-added and innovative baby care
products and services.

Corporation to KONAMI Corporation, and overall performance was down year-on-year.
Consequently, this fiscal year net sales were

In our core business, juvenile products, we radically

¥27,164 million (down 3.9% year-on-year), operating

revised our sales policy and shifted the sales strategy

income was ¥1,539 million, ordinary income was

for our flagship product lines—baby strollers, child

¥1,519 million, and net income was ¥1,321 million.

seats, and baby racks—from a focus on volume to a
focus on profit margins. At the same time we worked

Cash flows

hard to reduce costs and increase efficiency company

Cash and cash equivalents (“cash”) for this fiscal year

wide.

were ¥5,875 million, an increase of ¥437 million year-

As a result of this strategic shift, sales fell in Japan,

on-year.

but profits were up year-on-year. In overseas markets,

Net cash from operating activities was ¥3,063 million

both sales and earnings were significantly higher than

yen, a ¥2,322 million yen increase year-on-year. This

those of the previous year, driven primarily by the

was due in large part to a pre-tax gain of ¥1,786 mil-

Asian and U.S. markets. Using direct sales as the main

lion, in contrast to the pre-tax loss of ¥641 million in

sales channel, our child wear business again showed

the previous fiscal year.

strong sales with functionality and design as the main

Net cash used in investment activities totaled ¥2,030

consumer appeal. In addition, we acquired a patent on

million yen, compared with ¥112 million in the previous

the Wrap Crotch baby wear, followed by another on

year. This came primarily from the ¥1,172 million

Wrap Compact. In our baby toys business as well, we

increase in time deposits, acquisition of marketable

saw large year-on-year increases in both sales and

securities worth ¥993 million, and the acquisition of

earnings based on the strength of the Asian market.

tangible fixed assets worth ¥375 million, but offset by

The North American region also had positive results
with large increases in sales and earnings as a result of

the ¥444 million gain from the sale of shares in wholly
owned subsidiary Combi Wellness Corporation.

stepped up merchandising efforts and expansion of

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to

sales channels to those in the upper-middle income

¥592 million, compared with ¥345 million in the previ-

bracket.

ous year. This resulted primarily from ¥102 million in

In the Asian region, our Hong Kong subsidiary continued to show effective management and maintained

interest payments, ¥242 million in treasury stock purchases, and ¥231 million in dividend payments.
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Main Financial Index
Combi Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries

Years ended March 31

Net Sales/Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Sales Ratio
Consolidated

(Millions of yen/%)

2003

2004

2005

2006

Non-Consolidated

2007
1,539

Consolidated

5.7

Operating income

¥2,034

¥1,559

¥1,640

Operating margin

6.9%

5.4%

5.4%

Operating income

¥2,168

¥1,188

¥1,182

Operating margin

8.4%

4.9%

4.8%

¥(309)
(1.1)%

¥1,539

2.9
631

5.7%

Non-Consolidated
03 04 05 06 07

¥(433)
(1.9)%

03 04 05 06 07

¥ 631
2.9%

Return on Equity
Consolidated

Non-Consolidated
8.0

(%)

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Consolidated

5.7

5.5

9.3

(5.3)

8.0

Non-Consolidated

7.7

5.4

0.9

(5.3)

1.3

1.3

03 04 05 06 07

03 04 05 06 07

Earnings per Share
Consolidated
(Yen)

Non-Consolidated

74.49

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Consolidated

47.80

47.18

84.30

(48.36)

74.49

Non-Consolidated

57.82

42.34

7.25

(40.32)

9.77

9.77

03 04 05 06 07

03 04 05 06 07

Book Value per Share
Consolidated

Non-Consolidated

970.11

(Yen)

740.89

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Consolidated

868.23

874.87

934.35

896.00

970.11

Non-Consolidated

784.07

803.51

790.67

737.75

740.89

03 04 05 06 07
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03 04 05 06 07

Capital Ratio
Non-Consolidated

Consolidated
(%)

61.5

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Consolidated

57.6

59.5

58.8

58.7

61.5

Non-Consolidated

59.2

61.9

59.3

58.9

58.7

58.7

03 04 05 06 07

03 04 05 06 07

Dividend Payout Ratio
Non-Consolidated
(%)

Non-Consolidated

255.0

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

43.2

47.2

276.0

—

255.0

03 04 05 06 07

Price-to-Earnings Ratio (PER)
Consolidated
(Times)

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

15.2

16.0

9.7

—

10.3

10.3

Consolidated

03 04 05 06 07

Price-to-Book-Value Ratio (PBR)
Consolidated
(Times)

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

0.8

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.8

10.3

Consolidated

03 04 05 06 07
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Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Combi Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries

March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2006

2007

2007

¥19,105

¥19,303

$163,516

Cash and deposits

5,424

7,065

59,854

Accounts and notes receivable

7,280

6,500

55,066

933

905

7,669

4,619

4,028

34,124

Deferred tax assets

136

245

2,080

Other current assets

823

750

6,354

Allowance for doubtful accounts

(113)

(192)

(1,633)

Fixed Assets:

8,279

8,501

72,018

Tangible fixed assets:

5,768

5,634

47,726

2,250

2,166

18,355

Machinery and equipment

259

327

2,776

Molds

224

109

931

2,740

2,739

23,204

21

4

41

Other fixed assets

272

285

2,416

Intangible fixed assets

580

453

3,844

1,930

2,413

20,447

Investment in securities

966

1,913

16,208

Deferred tax assets

426

7

66

Other investments

549

503

4,262

(12)

(10)

(89)

¥27,385

¥27,804

$235,535

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Marketable securities
Inventories

Buildings and structures

Land
Construction in progress

Investment and other assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total Assets

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥118.05 as of March 31, 2007.

The above Consolidated Balance Sheets as well as financial statements (including Notes) in this annual report have not been audited
by an independent certified accountant.
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2006

2007

2007

¥ 7,317

¥ 7,822

$ 66,267

3,587

3,344

28,331

Short-term bank loans

1,296

1,281

10,858

Accrued expenses

1,508

1,252

10,609

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts and notes payable

Income taxes payable
Accrued bonuses to employees
Accrued bonuses to officers

49

73

622

210

320

2,716

—

20

171

664

1,529

12,956

Long-Term Liabilities:

3,928

2,835

24,020

Bonds

3,000

2,000

16,941

88

115

981

Accrued retirement benefits for officers

254

269

2,280

Other long-term liabilities

585

450

3,816

11,245

10,658

90,287

51

—

—

2,991

—

—

Other current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total Liabilities
MINORITY INTEREST
Minority interest
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Capital
Capital surplus

2,783

—

—

10,104

—

—

Variances in securities valuation

81

—

—

Currency exchange adjustment

129

—

—

Retained earnings

Treasury stock

(2)

—

—

16,087

—

—

Total Liabilities, Minority Interest and Shareholders’ Equity ¥27,385

¥ 7,3—

$ 62,2—

—

¥16,723

$141,668

Capital

—

2,991

25,344

Capital surplus

—

2,783

23,580

Retained earnings

—

11,193

94,822

Treasury stock

—

(245)

(2,079)

Total shareholders’ equity

NET ASSETS
Shareholders’ Equity:

Profit or Loss from Valuation

¥

—

365

3,097

—

58

491

Profit or loss of deferred hedge accounting

—

130

1,105

Currency exchange adjustment

—

177

1,499

Variances in securities valuation

Minority interest

—

56

481

Total shareholders’ equity

—

17,146

145,247

¥27,385

¥27,804

$235,535

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
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Consolidated Statements of Income
Combi Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries

Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2006

2007

2007

¥28,281

¥27,164

$230,114

Cost of Sales

16,329

15,181

128,606

Gross Profit

11,952

11,982

101,507

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

12,261

10,443

88,466

Operating Income

(309)

1,539

13,040

Non-operating Income

250

233

1,979

Interest income

46

100

849

Dividend income

10

11

101

Commissions received

83

51

435

Exchange gain

64

0

6

Other income

44

69

586

320

253

2,147

78

91

778

137

115

978

Lease payments

79

8

718

Other expenses

25

37

318

Extraordinary Income

43

460

3,898

Extraordinary Losses

305

192

1,634

Income before Income Taxes

(641)

1,786

15,137

Income tax, residential tax and enterprise tax

145

194

1,647

Income tax adjustments

64

264

2,243

Minority interest gains

16

5

49

¥ (868)

¥ 1,321

$ 11,196

Net Sales

Non-operating Expenses
Interest expenses
Sales discount

Net Income

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥118.05 as of March 31, 2007.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Combi Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries

Fiscal year ending March 31, 2007

Millions of yen
Shareholders’ equity
Total
shareholders’
equity

Capital
stock

Capital
reserve

Retained
earnings

Treasury
stock

¥2,991

¥2,783

¥10,104

¥ (2)

¥15,876

Dividends from surplus (note)

—

—

(89)

—

(89)

Dividends from surplus

—

—

(142)

—

(142)

Net earnings

—

—

1,321

—

1,321

Treasury stock acquisition

—

—

—

(242)

(242)

Changes other than in shareholders’ equity (net value)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

1,089

(242)

847

¥2,991

¥2,783

¥11,193

¥(245)

¥16,723

Balance as of March 31, 2006
Changes in this consolidated fiscal year

Totals
Balance as of March 31, 2007

Millions of yen
Valuation and translation adjustments
Unrealized
gain/loss on
marketable
securities

Carryover
hedge
gains/losses

Foreign
currency
translation
adjustment

Valuation and
translation
adjustment
total

Minority
interests

Net assets

¥81

¥ —

¥129

¥210

¥51

¥16,139

Dividends from surplus (note)

—

—

—

—

—

(89)

Dividends from surplus

—

—

—

—

—

(142)

Net earnings

—

—

—

—

—

1,321

Treasury stock acquisitions

—

—

—

—

—

(242)

(23)

130

48

154

5

159

(23)

130

48

154

5

1,007

¥58

¥130

¥177

¥365

¥56

¥17,146

Balance as of March 31, 2006
Changes in this consolidated fiscal year

Changes other than
in shareholders’ equity (net value)
Totals
Balance as of March 31, 2007

Note: These are the appropriation of profit items covered in the annual general meeting in June of 2006.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Combi Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries

Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes
Depreciation/amortization
Impairment loss
Decrease in allowance for doubtful receivables
Increase (decrease) in accrued bonuses to employees
Increase in accrued bonuses to officers
Decrease in accrued retirement benefits for employees
Decrease in accrued retirement benefits for officers
Interest and dividend income
Interest expenses
Exchange loss
Profit from marketable securities
Gain on sales of investments in affiliates
Write-down of investments in securities
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables
Increase in inventories
Decrease (increase) in other trade assets
Increase (decrease) in trade payables
Increase in other operating liabilities
Subtotal
Payment of income taxes
Income and other tax refunds
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest and dividend income received
Increase in time deposits
Decrease in time deposits
Proceeds from sale of securities
Payments for purchase of tangible fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Payments for purchase of intangible fixed assets
Payments for purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale of investment securities
Income from transfer of shares of subsidiary
Payments for other investments
Proceeds from return on other investments
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Payment of interest expenses
Increase in short-term bank loans
Decrease in short-term bank loans
Increase in treasury stock
Dividends paid
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period

2007

2007

¥ (641)
712
137
(68)
(168)
—
(18)
(36)
(57)
78
(79)
(2)
—
0
36
(18)
939
373
(39)
(590)
188
745
(176)
172
741

¥1,786
660
—
73
131
20
—
14
(112)
91
(28)
—
(456)
—
23
1
20
466
21
548
(15)
3,249
(195)
10
3,063

$15,137
5,596
—
625
1,110
171
—
125
(950)
778
(239)
—
(3,865)
—
199
13
177
3,948
183
4,644
(135)
27,522
(1,656)
86
25,952

58
(1,311)
1,783
154
(587)
63
(81)
(69)
125
—
(66)
44
112

94
(3,033)
1,860
30
(375)
0
(69)
(993)
—
444
(43)
53
(2,030)

800
(25,694)
15,760
254
(3,179)
6
(590)
(8,412)
—
3,761
(365)
454
17,203

(77)
900
(896)
(0)
(270)
(345)
198
707
4,730
¥5,438

(102)
800
(816)
(242)
(231)
(592)
(2)
437
5,438
¥5,875

(864)
6,776
(6,914)
(2,054)
(1,964)
(5,021)
(23)
3,705
46,065
$ 49,770

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥118.05 as of March 31, 2007.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
BASIS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Scope of consolidation
(1) The Company has eight consolidated subsidiaries: Combi Asia Limited, Combi USA, Inc., Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.,
Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd., Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd., Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd., COMBI KOREA CO.,
LTD. and CombiWith Corporation
Of the above, Combi Korea Co., Ltd., increased in importance, and so it was included in the consolidated statements starting this
fiscal year.
In addition, Combi Wellness was not included as a consolidated subsidiary because its shares were transferred.
2. Application of equity method
(1) No affiliates were subject to equity method accounting.
(2) The Company has two affiliates not subject to the equity method: BE BE DREAM LIMITED.
The above firms are not subject to the equity method because they have only minor impact on the Group’s net income and
consolidated retained earnings, etc., and have no significant influence on the Group’s financial results as a whole.
3. Matters concerning the fiscal periods of consolidated subsidiaries
The fiscal year of consolidated subsidiaries Combi Asia Limited, Combi USA, Inc., Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Dong Guan Combi
Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd., Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd., Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd., and COMBI KOREA CO., LTD. end on
December 31 each year. The accounts of these subsidiaries have been consolidated using the financial statements as of this date,
with necessary adjustments on consolidation for important transactions occurring between the above date and the Company’s
consolidated fiscal year-end. The accounting closing date of CombiWith Corporation coincide with the Company’s consolidated
subsidiaries’ fiscal year-end.
4. Summary of significant accounting principles
(1) Valuation standards and methods for important assets
A. Securities
(a) Held-to-maturity debt securities: stated at amortized cost (straight-line method).
(b) Other securities:
Securities with market quotations: stated at fair value determined by the market value at settlement of account.
(Unrealized gains or losses are recorded in shareholders’ equity. Cost is determined by the moving-average method.)
Securities without market quotations: stated at cost determined mainly by the moving-average method.
B. Derivatives
Stated at fair value.
C. Inventories
Stated at cost determined mainly by the average cost method.
(2) Depreciation/amortization of important depreciable assets
A. Tangible fixed assets
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries compute depreciation/amortization on the declining-balance method,
while overseas consolidated subsidiaries use the straight-line method.
Depreciation/amortization expenses for buildings (other than fixtures) of the Company and domestic consolidated subsidiaries,
acquired on or after April 1, 1998, are computed using the straight-line method.
The period of depreciation/amortization for the main tangible fixed assets are as follows:
Buildings: 8-50 years
Machinery and equipment: 5-11 years
B. Intangible fixed assets
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries compute amortization on the straight-line method.
Amortization of software costs for internal use is computed using the straight-line method based on the useful life of 5 years.
(3) Accounting for allowances
A. Allowance for doubtful accounts
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries provide for losses on ordinary receivables using the historical default
rate and provide for losses on specific receivables where there is a possibility of default based on the estimated amount of
uncollectible receivables on an individual basis.
B. Accrued bonuses to employees
To provide for the payment of bonuses to employees, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries make provisions for the
amount of future payments incurred in the consolidated fiscal year.
C. Executive Bonus Reserves
To prepare for the payment of bonuses to executives, an estimated amount to be paid this fiscal year was included.
D. Accrued retirement benefits for employees
To provide for employees’ retirement benefits, the Company records an amount that is recognized as arising at the end of the
period based on the estimated retirement benefit obligations and value of pension assets at the end of the fiscal year.
Unrecognized actuarial differences are amortized using the straight-line method over a period no longer than the average
remaining service period for employees in service (10 years) at the time the liabilities are incurred. In this case, actuarial differences
are amortized from the following fiscal year this process has been applied.
E. Accrued retirement benefits for officers
To provide for the payment of retirement benefits to directors and executive officers, the Company records an amount to
adequately cover payments at the end of the period, in accordance with internal regulations.
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(4) Standards for the conversion of important foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities into yen
Foreign currency denominated monetary receivables and payables are converted into Japanese yen at the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of the period, with exchange gains and losses recognized in the consolidated statements of income. The assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries are converted into Japanese yen at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the fiscal period of the overseas subsidiaries, while revenue and expense accounts are converted at the average exchange rate during the fiscal year. Translation adjustments
were included with the foreign currency translation adjustments and the minority interests in calculating net assets.
(5) Accounting methods of important lease transactions
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for finance leases, other than those in which ownership of the leased
property is transferred to the lessee, in accordance with standards for ordinary operating leases.
(6) Hedge accounting
A. Hedge accounting
In principle, the Company uses deferral hedge accounting. When currency swaps, foreign currency option contracts and forward
exchange contracts fulfill certain requirements, their values for the accounting period are calculated as a proportion of the difference
between the current and forward rates over the period of the contract.
B. Hedging instruments, hedged items and hedging policy
The Company hedges its exposure to the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and in accordance with the market risk
management regulations of the Company’s internal rules. With regard to the significant risk of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates on foreign currency denominated purchase transactions (including planned transactions), the Company principally hedges no more
than 90% of foreign currency transactions due for settlement within one year and no more than 70% of foreign currency transactions
due over one year.
The following are the hedging instruments and hedged items that are applied hedge accounting in the fiscal year concerned:
Hedging instruments: currency swaps, foreign currency option contracts and forward exchange contracts
Hedged items: foreign currency transactions (including planned transactions)
C.Method for measuring hedge effectiveness
In principle, the Company evaluates the effectiveness of its hedging activities by analyzing the ratio of accumulated gains or losses on
the hedging instruments and movement of cash flow, with the related hedged items and movement of cash flows from the commencement of the hedges. However, the hedge effectiveness is omitted in the case of forward exchange contracts, etc., where accounting is
applied.
(7) Other important items affecting the creation of financial statements
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for consumption tax using the tax exclusion method.
5. Matters concerning the evaluation of assets and liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries
Assets and liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries are wholly evaluated at the prevailing market prices.
6. Items relating to the depreciation of goodwill and negative goodwill
There are no such items.
7. Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits able to be withdrawn
on demand, and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less which represent a minor risk of fluctuation in value.

CHANGES IN ITEMS MATERIAL TO THE PRESENTATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Millions of yen)

Previous fiscal year (ended March 31, 2006)

Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2007)

Impairment accounting standards for fixed assets
Beginning with the fiscal year under review, fixed asset impairment
accounting standards (Opinion on Accounting Standards for Impairment
of Fixed Assets (Business Accounting Council, August 9, 2002) and
Guidelines for Practical Application of Accounting Standards for
Impairment of Fixed Assets (No. 6, Guidelines for Practical Application of
Accounting Standards; Business Accounting Council, October 31, 2003)
have been adopted. As a result, loss before income tax increased by
¥137 million for the fiscal year under review.
In accordance with the revised rules for preparing consolidated financial
statements, impairment amounts are deducted directly from each asset class.
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Accounting Standards for Representing Net Assets in the Balance Sheet
Starting this fiscal year, the Company applied the “Accounting Standards
for Representing Net Assets in the Balance Sheet” (Corporate Accounting
Standards Article 5, December 9, 2005) and the “Guidelines for Applying
Accounting Standards for Representing Net Assets in the Balance Sheet"
(Corporate Accounting Standards Guidelines Article 8, December 9,
2005). The total value of the capital section up to this point was equal to
16,959,097 yen.

Also, regarding the net asset portion of the consolidated balance sheet
for this fiscal year, the financial statements were created according to the
newly amended consolidated financial statements regulations.
Accounting Standards for Executive Bonuses
Starting this fiscal year, the Company applied the “Accounting Standards
for Executive Bonuses” (Corporate Accounting Standards Article 4,
November 29, 2005). As a result, operating profits, ordinary profits,
and after-tax profits from the previous term were each reduced by
20,300,000 yen.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Millions of yen)

Previous fiscal year (ended March 31, 2006)

Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2007)

1. Accumulated depreciation/amortization on tangible fixed assets 4,969
2. Assets pledged as collateral
Buildings and structures
914
Land
783
Total
Collateralized obligations
Bonds

1,698
1,000

3. Loan guarantees

25

4. Number of shares outstanding Common stock
5. Treasury stock

Common stock

17,959,158
2
(4,114)

1. Accumulated depreciation/amortization on tangible fixed assets 5,104
2. Assets pledged as collateral
Buildings and structures
850
Land
783
Total
Collateralized obligations
Bonds

1,634
1,000

3. Loan guarantees

13

4. Number of shares outstanding Common stock
5. Treasury stock

Common stock

17,959,158
245
(342,914)

6. Promissory Notes Maturing by the end of the Consolidated Fiscal Year
Promissory notes maturing on the last day of the consolidated fiscal
year are accounted for on their settlement dates. In addition, the final
day of the consolidated fiscal year fell on a financial institution holiday,
so the promissory notes maturing on the last day of the next consolidated fiscal year are included in the term ending balance.
Promissory notes received
36
7. Main selling, general and administrative expense items:
Freight-out
Advertising and promotion
Bonuses and allowances
Retirement benefit expenses
Provision for employees’ bonuses
Provision for officers’ retirement benefits
Provision to allowance for doubtful accounts
Depreciation/amortization
8. Research and development expenses to be included
in general and administrative expenses and
manufacturing costs incurred in the period
9. Main extraordinary income
Subsidies
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Reversal from accrued retirement benefits for officers
Main extraordinary losses
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Impairment loss
Product recall expenses
Water damage expenses
Loss on cancellation of agency contract

1,062
2,323
3,051
217
160
26
77
329

1,330
15
18
9
45
137
55
33
30

7. Main selling, general and administrative expense items:
Freight-out
Advertising and promotion
Bonuses and allowances
Retirement benefit expenses
Provision for employees’ bonuses
Transfer to executive bonus reserves
Provision for officers’ retirement benefits
Provision to allowance for doubtful accounts
Depreciation/amortization

908
2,009
2,599
176
255
20
25
78
324

8. Research and development expenses to be included
in general and administrative expenses and
manufacturing costs incurred in the period

892

9. Main extraordinary income
Gains on sales of securities of affiliated companies

456

Main extraordinary losses
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Additional retirement allowance
Contributions concurrent with withdrawing from
employee pension fund

26
119
44
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(Millions of yen)

Previous fiscal year (ended March 31, 2006)

Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2007)

10. Impairment loss
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, the following groups of
assets of the Group have been charged with impairment losses.
Location

Chiba,
Chiba Prefecture

Application

Category

Children photography Buildings, fixtures,
shop facilities
construction in progress,
software in progress,
and long-term advances

Kawaguchi Nursery Nursery facilities

Buildings and fixtures

When grouping assets, the Combi Group mainly categorizes its
assets based on minimum cash flow units by management accounting classifications. The assets are then grouped according to those units.
However, because each of the nursery business and children’s photography shop business facilities already are independent minimum cash
flow units, they are grouped by individual facility.
Since children’s photography shop facilities are expected to post
losses in future, the book values of the asset groups that these facilities
use have been reduced to potential recovery values. The reduction (¥104
million) was booked as an impairment loss under extraordinary loss. Of
that amount, ¥26 million was for buildings, ¥11 million for fixtures, ¥20
million for construction in progress, ¥43 million for software in progress,
and ¥1 million for long-term advances.
At the Kawaguchi Nursery, business structure problems are expected
to produce business losses in future. Therefore, the book values of the
asset groups that these facilities use have been reduced to potential
recovery values. The reduction (¥33 million) was booked as an impairment loss under extraordinary loss. Of that amount, ¥32 million was for
buildings and ¥1 million was for fixtures.
Potential recovery values for asset groups are usually calculated using
utility value. However, when cash flows are expected to be minus in the
future, potential recovery value is evaluated as zero.
11. Notes to consolidated statements of cash flows
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at end of period
with cash items on balance sheet
Cash on hand and in banks
Securities

5,424
933

Total
Time deposits exceeding three months
Stock investment funds and bonds with redemption
periods exceeding three months

6,358
(890)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

5,438

(30)

11. Notes to consolidated statements of cash flows
(1) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at end of period
with cash items on balance sheet
Cash on hand and in banks
Securities

7,065
905

Total
Time deposits exceeding three months
Stock investment funds and bonds with redemption
periods exceeding three months

7,971
(2,095)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

5,875

—

(2) Breakdown of the major assets and liabilities of companies that
ceased being consolidated subsidiaries as a result of the sale of their
securities during this consolidated fiscal year
The following are the assets and liabilities of Combi Wellness, which
ceased being a consolidated subsidiary as a result of the sale of their
securities.
Current assets
1,057
Fixed assets
36
Current liabilities
(923)
Fixed liabilities
(56)
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Fiscal year ending March 31, 2007

1. Outstanding shares by type and volume and treasury shares by type and volume
Previous
consolidated
fiscal year
(millions of shares)

Shares added
this consolidated
fiscal year
(millions of shares)

Shares reduced
this consolidated
fiscal year
(millions of shares)

Shares this
consolidated
fiscal year
(millions of shares)

Outstanding shares
Common stock

¥

17

¥

—

¥—

¥

17

Total

¥

17

¥

—

¥—

¥

17

Treasury shares
Common stock (note)

¥0.004

¥0.338

¥—

¥0.342

Total

¥0.004

¥0.338

¥—

¥0.342

Note: The additional 338,000 common treasury stocks were purchased pursuant to a decision of the board.

2. Dividends
(1) Dividends paid
Share type

Total dividends
(millions of yen)

Dividend per share
(yen)

Base date

Effective date

June 29, 2006 AGM

Common stock

¥ 89

¥5.00

March 31, 2006

June 29, 2006

November 1, 2006 Board Meeting

Common stock

¥142

¥8.00

September 30, 2006

December 11, 2006

Decision

(2) Dividends whose base date is in the current period but whose effective date is in the next period
The following decision is expected.
Share type

Total dividends
(millions of yen)

Source of dividend

Common stock

¥299

Profit surplus

Decision

May 28, 2007, by
Board of Directors Meeting

(Millions of yen)

Dividend per share
(yen)

Base date

Effective date

Ordinary
¥12.00
Extraordinary ¥ 5.00

March 31,
2007

June 13,
2007

LEASE TRANSACTIONS
(Millions of yen)

Previous Fiscal Year (April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)

Current Fiscal Year (April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)

1. Finance leases other than those in which ownership of the leased item
can be transferred to the lessee.
(1) Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation, accumulated loss on
impairment, and period ending balance
Acquisition
cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Period ending
balance

Molds
¥230
Other tangible fixed assets
67
Intangible fixed assets
113

¥131
44
57

¥ 98
23
55

Total

¥233

¥177

¥410

(2) Period ending balance of prepaid lease payments
Period-ending balance of prepaid lease payments
Within one year
After one year
Total

¥109
65
¥175

(3) Lease payments, reversal on impairment loss on leased assets,
depreciation cost, interest paid, impairment loss
Lease payments
¥160
Depreciation cost
162
Interest paid
3

1. Finance leases other than those in which ownership of the leased item
can be transferred to the lessee.
(1) Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation, accumulated loss on
impairment, and period ending balance
Acquisition
cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Period ending
balance

Molds
¥202
Other tangible fixed assets
37
Intangible fixed assets
84

¥ 99
29
49

¥103
7
35

Total

¥179

¥146

¥325

(2) Period ending balance of prepaid lease payments
Period-ending balance of prepaid lease payments
Within one year
After one year
Total

¥ 87
56
¥144

(3) Lease payments, reversal on impairment loss on leased assets, depreciation cost, interest paid, impairment loss
Lease payments
¥139
Depreciation cost
141
Interest paid
3
35

(Millions of yen)

Previous Fiscal Year (April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)

Current Fiscal Year (April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)

(4) Method of calculating depreciation
The fixed value method was used, with the lease period as the
durable life and with a remaining value of zero.

(4) Method of calculating depreciation
Same as previous year.

(5) Method of calculating interest
The interest method was used, with the interest value calculated as
the difference between the total lease payments and the acquisition
cost of the leased item. The interest method is used to determine the
amount apportioned to each period.

(5) Method of calculating interest
Same as previous year.

2. Operating leases
Prepaid lease payments
Within one year
More than one year

¥ 49
232

Total

2. Operating leases
Prepaid lease payments
Within one year
More than one year

¥281

(Regarding the impairment loss)
There was no impairment loss apportioned to leased assets.

¥ 51
186

Total

¥237

(Regarding the impairment loss )
Same as previous year

SECURITIES
Previous fiscal year (ended March 31, 2006)

1. Held-to-maturity securities with market value

(Millions of yen)

Type

Market value exceeds carrying amount

Carrying amount

Market value

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

¥ 29
60

¥ 30
60

¥ 0
0

90

90

0

50
—

49
—

(0)
—

(1) Govermment bonds
(2) Corporate bonds
Subtotal

Market value is less than carrying amount

(1) Govermment bonds
(2) Corporate bonds
Subtotal

50

49

(0)

¥140

¥140

¥ (0)

Acquisition cost

Carrying amount

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

¥22
—

¥160
—

¥137
—

22

160

137

—
—

—
—

—
—

Total
2. Other securities with market quotations

(Millions of yen)

Type

Carrying amount exceeds acquisition cost

(1) Equity securities
(2) Corporate bonds

Carrying amount is less than acquisition cost

(1) Equity securities
(2) Corporate bonds

Subtotal

Subtotal

—

—

—

¥22

¥160

¥137

Over one year but
within five years

Over five years but
within ten years

¥—
30

¥ 80
30

—
—

¥30

¥110

—

Total
3. Other securities without market quotations

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount

Other securities (1) Unlisted equity securities
(2) Money management fund

¥689
909

4. Future redemption values of other securities with maturities or held-to-maturity bonds
Within one year

Bonds

(1) Government bonds
(2) Corporate bonds
Total
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(Millions of yen)

Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2007)
(Millions of yen)

1. Held-to-maturity securities with market value
Type

Market value exceeds carrying amount

(1) Govermment bonds
(2) Corporate bonds

Market value is less than carrying amount

(1) Govermment bonds
(2) Corporate bonds

Carrying amount

Market value

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

¥ 29
100

¥ 30
100

¥ 0
0

129

130

0

150
60

149
60

(0)
(0)

Subtotal

Subtotal

210

209

(1)

¥340

¥340

¥ (0)

Acquisition cost

Carrying amount

Gross unrealized
gains (losses)

¥ 22
—
602

¥119
—
603

¥96
—
0

625

722

97

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

—

—

—

¥625

¥722

¥97

Over one year but
within five years

Over five years but
within ten years

—
—

¥180
160

—
—

—

¥340

—

Total
2. Other securities with market quotations

(Millions of yen)

Type

Carrying amount exceeds acquisition cost

(1) Equity securities
(2) Corporate bonds
(3) Others

Carrying amount is less than acquisition cost

(1) Equity securities
(2) Corporate bonds
(3) Others

Subtotal

Subtotal
Total
3. Other securities without market quotations

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount

Other securities (1) Unlisted equity securities
(2) Money management fund

¥849
905
(Millions of yen)

4. Future redemption values of other securities with maturities or held-to-maturity bonds
Within one year

Bonds

(1) Government bonds
(2) Corporate bonds
Total

37

DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS
1. Derivative trading information
Previous Fiscal Year (April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)

Current Fiscal Year (April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)

(1) Transaction types
Derivative trades include currency swaps, currency options, and foreign
exchange contracts.

(1) Transaction types
Same as previous fiscal year

(2) Derivatives trading approach
The Company participate in derivatives trading to offset the risk of
changes in the exchange rate, and the Company does not engage in
speculative trades.

(2) Derivatives trading policy
Same as previous fiscal year

(3) Derivative trading objectives
The purpose of derivatives trading is to avoid the risk associated with
foreign exchange rate changes, which affect import and export transactions that are a part of the normal business process.
In addition, derivatives trading is used to engage in hedge accounting.

(3) Derivative trading objectives
Same as previous fiscal year

Hedge accounting method
Deferral accounting is used for hedge accounting.
In addition, for currency swaps, currency options, and foreign
exchange contracts, the allocation method is used when the conditions
for the allocation method are met.
Hedge methods, hedge targets, hedge policy
Hedge methods: currency swap, currency option, foreign exchange
contracts
Hedge targets: foreign currency based transactions (including
scheduled transactions)
The policy for protecting against foreign exchange risk on foreigncurrency denominated transactions (including scheduled transactions),
in principle, is to hedge 90% of transactions that will settle within one year,
and to hedge 70% of transactions that will settle in more than one year.
Method for evaluating hedge effectiveness
In principle, a hedge is evaluated using the ratio of the total market fluctuations or cash flow of the hedge target with the market fluctuations or
cash flow of the hedge method. However, foreign exchange contracts
that use the allocation method are not subject to evaluation.
(4) Transaction risks
Currency swap transactions, currency option transactions, and foreign
exchange contract transactions are at risk of changes in the foreign
exchange market.
The Company engages in derivatives transactions with banks with a
high credit rating, so there is almost no non-performance risk.

(4) Transaction risks
Same as previous fiscal year

(5) Risk management system
The execution and management of derivative transactions is performed
in accordance with the Company’s Market Risk Management
Regulations, which defines transaction authority and value limits, and
with the approval of the top decision maker in the division in charge of
the finances.

(5) Risk management system
Same as previous fiscal year

2. Mark-to-market information
Previous Fiscal Year (April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)

This section is omitted because the hedge accounting method is used for
all derivatives trading done by the Company.
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Current Fiscal Year (April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)

Same as previous fiscal year

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
1. Outline of the Company’s retirement benefit plans
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have established comprehensive pension programs: the Employees’ Pension Fund
Program and the Approved Retirement Annuity System as defined-benefit plan. The Company may provide for premium severance pay as
employees’ retirement benefits. Please note that the Company has no retirement benefits plan for overseas consolidated subsidiaries.
2. Employees’ retirement benefit obligations
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.
G.
H.

Employees’ retirement benefit obligations
Pension assets
Unreserved employees’ retirement benefit obligations (A + B)
Unrecognized difference realized from actuarial calculation
Unrecognized past employment obligations
Net amount recorded in consolidated balance sheets (C + D + E)
Prepaid pension cost
Accrued employees’ retirement benefits (F – G)

2006

2007

¥(1,369)
1,354
(15)
31
—
16
16
¥
—

¥(1,152)
1,209
56
(11)
—
44
44
¥
—

Note: Pension assets calculated using contribution ratio applied to Employees’ Pension Fund Program is ¥3,432 million for the fiscal year ended March 2006 and ¥3,182 million
for the fiscal year ended March 2007.

3. Employees’ retirement benefit costs
2006

2007

A. Employment cost
B. Interest cost
C. Expected investment yield
D. Appropriation of actuarial difference as expense
E. Appropriation of past employment liabilities as expense

¥ 94
26
(26)
34
—

¥ 90
27
(33)
18
—

F. Employees’ retirement benefit cost (A + B + C + D + E)

¥128

¥102

Note: Besides the above employees’ benefit cost, the following amounts have been appropriated as employees’ retirement benefit costs: Employer’s contribution against
employees’ pension fund of ¥128 million for fiscal year ended March 2006, and ¥119 million for fiscal year ended March 2007, with premium severance pay of ¥1.5 million
for fiscal year ended March 2006.

4. Basis of calculating employees’ retirement benefit obligations

A. Allocation of expected employees’ retirement benefits
B. Discount rate
C. Expected rate of return from investment
D. Appropriation period for past employment liabilities
E. Appropriation period for actuarial difference

2006

2007

Flat-rate standard during the period
2.0%
2.5%
—
10 years

Same as on the left
2.0%
2.5%
—
Same as on the left

(The amount allocated based on the
straight-line method for a certain
period within the average remaining
employment period for employees
at the start of each fiscal year has
been appropriated as expense
in the following fiscal year.

Same as on the left
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TAX EFFECT ACCOUNTING
(Millions of yen)

Previous fiscal year (ended March 31, 2006)

1. Breakdown of principal causes of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
Repudiation of provision to accrued retirement benefits
for officers
Non-deductible allowance for doubtful accounts
Non-deductible accrued bonuses to employees
Net loss carried forward
Repudiation of loss on revaluation of inventories
Tax deduction
Impairment loss
Other deferred tax assets
Subtotal
Valuation reserve
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Reserve fund for fixed asset reduction
Other deferred tax liabilities
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

Current fiscal year (ended March 31, 2007)

¥ 102
26
84
1,286
46
71
54
85
1,758
(1,018)
740
(185)
(80)
(266)
¥ 474

2. Breakdown of principal causes for the difference between legal effective
tax rate and income taxes after tax effect accounting is applied
Not included because Company posted consolidated loss.

1. Breakdown of principal causes of deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
Repudiation of provision to accrued retirement benefits
for officers
Non-deductible allowance for doubtful accounts
Non-deductible accrued bonuses to employees
Net loss carried forward
Repudiation of loss on revaluation of inventories
Impairment loss
Unpaid expenses
Other deferred tax assets
Subtotal
Valuation reserve
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Reserve fund for fixed asset reduction
Unrealized gain or loss on marketable securities
Other deferred tax liabilities

1,250
(784)
466
(178)
(39)
(110)

Total deferred tax liabilities

(328)

Net deferred tax assets

137

2. Breakdown of principal causes for the difference between legal effective
tax rate and income taxes after tax effect accounting is applied
Legal effective tax rate
40.4%
(adjustments)
Nondeductible items such as entertainment expenses
0.3%
Residential tax on per capita basis
1.2%
Tax deduction
4.3%
Increase/decrease of valuation reserve
(2.7%)
Adjustment through consolidation gains from
the sale of securities of affiliated companies
(9.6%)
Difference in applicable tax rate among
overseas subsidiaries
(8.1%)
Non-application of tax effect accounting to
net income (loss) of subsidiaries
0.2%
Others
(0.2%)
Income taxes rate after tax effect accounting is applied
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108
30
129
805
22
11
44
96

25.7%

SEGMENT INFORMATION
1. Segment information by industry segment
The following tables show segment information by industry segment for fiscal years ended March 2005 and 2006.
Period

Baby Care
Products and Toys

Healthcare
Products

Total

Current fiscal year ended March 31, 2006:
Net sales and operating income (loss)
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers

¥25,275
—

¥3,006
—

¥28,281
—

Total

25,275

3,006

Operating expenses

23,938

3,203

1,336

(Millions of yen)

Elimination
and Corporate

—
—

¥28,281
—

28,281

—

28,281

27,142

1,448

28,591

(197)

1,139

(1,448)

(309)

19,270
585
137
606

2,157
40
—
18

21,428
626
137
624

5,956
85
—
26

27,385
712
137
651

¥25,251
—

¥1,913
—

¥27,164
—

—
—

¥27,164
—

Total

25,251

1,913

27,164

—

27,164

Operating expenses

22,395

1,830

24,226

1,399

25,625

2,855

83

2,938

(1,399)

1,539

18,753
542
—
413

1,201
37
—
19

19,955
580
—
433

7,849
80
—
5

27,804
660
—
438

Operating income
Total assets, depreciation/amortization and capital expenditure
Total assets
Depreciation/amortization
Operating loss
Capital expenditure
Previous fiscal year ended March 31, 2007:
Net sales and operating income (loss)
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers

Operating income
Total assets, depreciation/amortization and capital expenditure
Total assets
Depreciation/amortization
Operating loss
Capital expenditure

¥

Consolidated

¥

Notes: 1. Method for classifying industry segments and main products in each segment:
(1) Industry segments are classified according to the main products handled.
(2) Main products and business in each industry segment
Industry Segment

Main Products and Businesses

Baby Care Products and Toys

Baby care products, strollers, child car seats, nursing products, toys, childcare products, child wear, management of nursery
daycare centers, etc.

Health Care Products

Fitness machines, nursing care products, functional food products, etc.

2. Unallocatable expenses included in “elimination and corporate” under “operating expenses” for fiscal years ended March 2006 and 2007 are ¥1,448 million and ¥1,399
million, respectively, and mainly comprise expenses incurred in the Company’s general affairs and personnel, finance, management planning and other management
departments.
3. Corporate assets included in “elimination and corporate” under “total assets” amount to ¥5,965 million and ¥7,858 million, respectively, and mainly comprise the parent
company’s investment in surplus funds (cash on hand and in bank and securities), long-term investment funds (investment in securities) and assets of other management departments.
4. Depreciation/amortization and capital expenditure include long-term prepaid expenses and associated depreciation/amortization.
5. Changes in accounting method
(Accounting standards for executive bonuses)
As put forth in the Important Changes to Basic Regulations Concerning the Creation of Consolidated Financial Statements, the “Accounting Standards for Executive
Bonuses” (Corporate Accounting Standards Article 4, November 29, 2005) were applied this fiscal year. As a result, the elimination of inter-segment transactions and
unallocated corporate increased by 20,300,000 yen, with a corresponding drop in operating income.
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2. Segment information by geographical area
The following tables show segment information by geographical area for fiscal years ended March 2005 and 2006.
Total

Consolidated

Japan

Asia

¥25,219
182

¥1,532
4,786

¥1,529
—

¥28,281
4,968

¥ —
(4,968)

¥28,281
—

Total

25,402

6,318

1,529

33,250

(4,968)

28,281

Operating expenses

24,642

5,736

1,774

32,153

(3,561)

28,591

760

582

(244)

1,097

(1,407)

(309)

¥17,176

¥5,595

¥1,298

¥24,070

¥3,314

¥27,385

¥23,250
180

¥1,746
4,785

¥2,168
0

¥27,164
4,966

¥ —
(4,966)

¥27,164
—

Total

23,430

6,531

2,168

32,131

(4,966)

27,164

Operating expenses

21,226

5,925

2,030

29,182

(3,556)

25,625

2,204

606

138

2,948

(1,409)

1,539

¥15,244

¥6,147

¥1,183

¥22,575

¥5,229

¥27,804

Current fiscal year ended March 31, 2006:
Net sales and operating income (loss)
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers

Operating income
Total assets
Previous fiscal year ended March 31, 2007:
Net sales and operating income (loss)
Net sales
(1) Sales to external customers
(2) Intersegment sales/transfers

Operating income
Total assets

North America

(Millions of yen)

Elimination
and Corporate

Notes: 1. Regions are classified according to geographical proximity.
2. The countries encompassed by geographic segments other than Japan are as follows:
Asia: China, Taiwan and Korea
North America: USA
3. Unallocatable expenses included in “elimination and corporate” under “operating expenses” for fiscal years ended March 2006 and 2007 are ¥1,448 million and
¥1,399 million, respectively, and mainly comprise expenses incurred in the Company’s general affairs and personnel, finance, management planning and other management departments.
4. Corporate “total assets” included as “eliminated” or “overall corporate accounting” for fiscal years ended March 2006 and 2007 are ¥5,965 million and ¥7,858 million,
respectively, and mainly comprise the Company’s investment in surplus funds (cash on hand and in bank and securities), long-term investment funds (investments in securities) and assets of other management departments.
5. Changes in accounting method
(Accounting standards for executive bonuses)
As put forth in the Important Changes to Basic Regulations Concerning the Creation of Consolidated Financial Statements, the “Accounting Standards for Executive
Bonuses” (Corporate Accounting Standards Article 4, November 29, 2005) were applied this fiscal year. As a result, the elimination of inter-segment transactions and
unallocated corporate increased by 20,300,000 yen, with a corresponding drop in operating income.

3. Overseas sales (export sales and sales by overseas subsidiaries)
Consolidated previous fiscal year (April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)
III. Overseas net sales
III. Consolidated net sales
III. Proportion of overseas sales in consolidated net sales

(Millions of yen)

Asia

North America

Other Regions

Total

¥1,608
—
5.7

¥1,529
—
5.4

¥ 72
—
0.3

¥ 3,210
28,281
11.4

Asia

North America

Other Regions

Total

¥1,697
—
6.2

¥2,174
—
8.0

¥ 71
—
0.3

¥ 3,942
27,164
14.5

Notes: 1. Regions are determined by geographical proximity.
2. Breakdown of countries in regions is as follows:
Asia: China, Taiwan and others
North America: United States
3. Overseas sales comprise sales of the parent company and subsidiaries outside Japan.

Consolidated current fiscal year (April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)
III. Overseas net sales
III. Consolidated net sales
III. Proportion of overseas sales in consolidated net sales
Notes: 1. Regions are determined by geographical proximity.
2. Breakdown of countries in regions is as follows:
Asia: China, Taiwan and Korea
North America: United States
3. Overseas sales comprise sales of the parent company and subsidiaries outside Japan.
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(Millions of yen)

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Fiscal year ended March 2006 (April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)

The parent company and principal corporate shareholders are as follows.

Classification

Name of
company

Address

(Millions of yen)

Percentage
Relations
Capital or Industry segment of shareholder
Business
investments
or business
voting rights Interlocking
in capital
domains
(shares owned)
officers
relations

Principal
PIP-TOKYO Chiyoda-ku,
corporate
Co., Ltd.
Tokyo
shareholders

¥1,563
million

Manufacture and
(Shares
marketing of
owned)
medical hygiene
Direct
products, medical
appliances, house- ownership:
11.9%
hold goods, baby
care products, etc.

One
officer

Detail of
transactions

Marketing of
the Company’s Marketing
baby care
of products
products, toys,
and
health care
goods
products

Transaction
amount

¥1,576
million

Account
items

Balance
at the end of
the period

Accounts
receivable

¥280
million

Notes
receivable

¥661
million

Notes: 1. Consumption taxes are not included in the transaction amount but are included in the balance at the end of the period.
2. The Company’s policy to determine the terms/conditions for business transactions:
The prices and other terms of business transactions related to the marketing of the Company’s products are in accordance with similar terms of business transactions
with other related parties that have no association with the Company.
As such, the Company’s terms of business transactions are not inferior to those of other related parties.
3. The Company’s representative chairman of the Board, Yasuo Matsuura, serves as chairman of the Board of PIP-TOKYO Co., Ltd.

Fiscal year ended March 2007 (April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)

The parent company and principal corporate shareholders are as follows.

Classification

Name of
company

Address

Relations
Percentage
Capital or Industry segment of shareholder
Business
investments
or business
voting rights Interlocking
in capital
domains
(shares owned)
officers
relations

Principal
PIP-TOKYO Chiyoda-ku,
corporate
Co., Ltd.
Tokyo
shareholders

¥1,563
million

Manufacture and
(Shares
marketing of
owned)
medical hygiene
Direct
products, medical
appliances, house- ownership:
13.9%
hold goods, baby
care products, etc.

One
officer

Detail of
transactions

Marketing of
the Company’s Marketing
baby care
of products
products, toys,
and
health care
goods
products

Transaction
amount

¥1,216
million

Account
items

Balance
at the end of
the period

Accounts
receivable

¥140
million

Notes
receivable

¥482
million

Notes: 1. Consumption taxes are not included in the transaction amount but are included in the balance at the end of the period.
2. The Company’s policy to determine the terms/conditions for business transactions:
The prices and other terms of business transactions related to the marketing of the Company’s products are in accordance with similar terms of business transactions
with other related parties that have no association with the Company.
As such, the Company’s terms of business transactions are not inferior to those of other related parties.
3. The Company’s representative chairman of the Board, Yasuo Matsuura, serves as chairman of the Board of PIP-TOKYO Co., Ltd.

PER SHARE INFORMATION
Previous Fiscal Year (April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)

Net asset value per share
Net earnings per share

Current Fiscal Year (April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)

¥896.00
¥(48.36)

Since there are no residual securities, the fully diluted earnings
per share value is not included.

Net asset value per share
Net earnings per share

¥970.11
¥74.49

Since there are no residual securities, the fully diluted earnings
per share value is not included.

Note: The following basis was used to calculate net earnings per share.
Previous Fiscal Year

Current Fiscal Year

(April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2006)

(April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007)

¥(868)

¥1,321

Net earnings
Amount not returned to ordinary shareholders (millions of yen)
(Amount of director bonuses through appropriation of profits) (millions of yen)
Net earnings for common shares (millions of yen)
Average outstanding shares this period

—

—

(—)

(—)

¥(868)

¥1,321

17,955

17,743

IMPORTANT ANNOUNCEMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
None.
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Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Non-Consolidated Balance Sheets (Reference)
Combi Corporation

March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen
2006

2007

2007

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and deposits
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Securities
Merchandise
Products
Raw materials
Supplies
Advances
Prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets
Accounts due
Short-term loans to associated companies
Derivatives obligations
Others
Allowance for doubtful accounts

¥14,684
2,491
1,136
5,043
933
658
1,828
737
2
1
64
98
281
1,020
226
180
(22)

¥14,292
3,954
906
4,500
905
626
1,526
684
1
0
71
204
276
350
188
115
(17)

$121,072
33,494
7,674
38,127
7,669
5,305
12,931
5,801
8
0
605
1,729
2,338
2,964
1,594
977
(151)

Fixed Assets:
Tangible fixed assets:
Buildings
Structures
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Metal dies
Tool, furniture and fixtures
Land
Intangible fixed assets:
Software
Others
Investments and Others:
Investments in securities
Stocks of affiliated companies
Investments in partnerships
Long-term loans receivable to affiliated companies
Reorganization claims
Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets
Others
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Total Assets

7,811
4,585
1,448
78
116
4
22
173
2,740
467
455
12
2,758
933
316
0
975
15
1
423
351
(258)
¥22,496

7,926
4,526
1,379
67
104
3
15
216
2,739
320
308
11
3,078
1,886
249
0
861
15
1
—
322
(258)
¥22,219

67,145
38,347
11,684
573
882
33
134
1,835
23,204
2,716
2,616
100
26,080
15,981
2,110
5
7,300
131
10
—
2,727
(2,185)
$188,217

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥118.05 as of March 31, 2007.
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Short-term bank loans
Payment due
Fees payable
Income taxes payable
Advance received
Deposits received
Accrued bonuses to employees
Accrued bonuses for officers
Deferred hedge net gain
Current portion of straight bonds
Other current liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities:
Bonds
Accrued retirement benefits for officers
Deposit received for guarantees
Deferred tax liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Capital
Capital Surplus:
Additional paid-in capital
Retained Earnings:
Legal earnings reserve
Voluntary reserve
Fixed asset reduction reserve
Special depreciation reserve
General reserve
Unappropriated retained earnings
Variances on Securities Valuation
Treasury Stock
Total Shareholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities and Total Shareholders’ Equity
NET ASSETS
Shareholders’ Equity:
Common stock
Capital surplus
Capital reserve
Retained earnings
Legal earned surplus reserve
Other retained earnings
Fixed asset compression reserve
Special depreciation reserve
General reserve
Unappropriated retained earnings
Treasury stock

2006

2007

2007

¥ 5,506
1,892
1,188
743
1,118
151
23
2
15
145
—
226
—
—
3,742
3,000
254
388
—
100
9,249

¥ 6,444
1,869
1,297
766
913
248
30
1
30
266
20
—
1,000
0
2,722
2,000
269
411
42
—
9,167

$ 54,590
15,838
10,988
6,494
7,734
2,103
254
15
260
2,255
171
—
8,470
0
23,066
16,941
2,280
3,485
358
—
77,656

2,991
2,783
2,783
7,391
324
994
176
7
810
6,072
81
(2)
13,246
¥22,496

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

¥12,863
2,991
2,783
2,783
7,332
324
7,008
158
1
810
6,039
(245)
188
58
130
13,051
¥22,219

$108,963
25,344
23,580
23,580
62,117
2,748
59,368
1,339
10
6,861
51,156
(2,079)
1,597
491
1,105
110,561
$188,217

¥

Profit or Loss from Valuation

Variances in securities valuation
Profit or loss of deferred hedge accounting
Total Shareholders’ Equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

¥

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
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Non-Consolidated Statements of Income (Reference)
Combi Corporation

Years ended March 31

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

Net Sales
Cost of Sales

2006

2007

2007

¥22,243

¥21,487

$182,020

13,486

12,450

105,471

Gross Profit

8,756

9,036

76,548

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

9,190

8,405

71,202

(433)

631

5,346

316

229

1,946

37

37

314

Operating Income
Non-Operating Income
Interest revenue
Interest on securities
Dividend revenue
Management service fee income
Commissions
Other

1

4

35

44

45

382

101

59

506

83

51

435

47

32

271

206

227

1,923

Interest paid

10

15

133

Interest on corporate bonds

49

49

419

131

115

975

—

23

197

Non-Operating Expenses

Sales discount
Loss on cancellation of lease contracts
Other
Ordinary Income
Extraordinary Income
Gain on sales of fixed assets
Reversal of reserve for executive retirement allowance
Gains on sales of affiliated company securities
Reversal of reserves for bad debt allowance

14

23

197

(323)

633

5,368

28

37

315

18

0

0

9

—

—

—

32

278

—

4

36

455

189

1,604

Loss from disposal of fixed assets

19

22

191

Loss from sale of fixed assets

—

1

15

104

—

—

0

—

—

Extraordinary Losses

Loss on impairment of fixed assets
Loss on valuation of investment in marketable securities
Loss on valuation of capital investment in affiliates

98

—

—

188

—

—

Loss from water damage

33

—

—

Expenses for recall

11

—

—

Loss on restructuring of business

—

0

4

Retirement bonuses

—

119

1,015

Loss on transfer of allowance for bad debt

Contributions concurrent with withdrawing from employee pension fund
Income before Income Taxes
Provision for income tax, inhabitant tax and enterprise tax
Income taxes adjustment
Net Income

—

44

376

(751)

481

4,080

14

20

173

(41)

287

2,438

173

$ 1,468

¥ (723)

¥

Note: Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the exchange rate of US$1=¥118.05 as of March 31, 2007.
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Non-Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Combi Corporation

Fiscal year of April 1, 2006, to March 31, 2007

Millions of yen
Shareholders’ Equity
Capital
surplus

Retained earnings
Other retained earnings

Capital
stock

Balance as of March 31, 2006

Capital
reserve

¥2,991 ¥2,783

Legal
earned
surplus

¥324

Fixed
asset
Special
compres- depreciation
sion reserve reserve

¥176

¥7

Unappropriated Retained
General
retained
earnings
reserve
earnings
total

Treasury
stock

¥810

¥ (2) ¥13,164

¥6,072 ¥7,391

Total
shareholders’
equity

Changes in this fiscal year:
Reversal of special depreciation reserve
(note)

(3)

3

—

—

Reversal of special depreciation reserve

(3)

3

—

—

Reversal of fixed asset compression
reserve (note)
Reversal of fixed asset compression reserve

(10)

10

—

—

(8)

8

—

—

Dividend from surplus (note)

(89)

(89)

(89)

Dividend from surplus

(142)

(142)

(142)

Net earnings

173

173

173

Repurchase of treasury stock

(242)

(242)

(58) (242)

(301)

Changes in this business year other than
those in capital stock (net value)
Totals
Balance as of March 31, 2007

—

—

(18)

(6)

—

¥2,991 ¥2,783

—

¥324

¥158

¥1

¥810

(33)

¥6,039 ¥7,332 ¥(245) ¥12,863

Millions of yen
Valuation and translation adjustments
Unrealized
gain/loss on
marketable
securities

Balance as of March 31, 2006

¥81

Carryover
hedge
gains/losses

—

Valuation and
translation
adjustment
total

Net assets

¥81

¥13,246

Changes in this fiscal year
Reversal of special depreciation reserve

—

Reversal of special depreciation reserve

—

Reversal of fixed asset compression reserve

—

Reversal of fixed asset compression reserve

—

Dividend from surplus (note)

(89)

Dividend from surplus

(142)

Net earnings

173

Repurchase of treasury stock

(242)

Changes in this business year other than those in capital stock (net value)
Totals
Balance as of March 31, 2007

(23)

¥130

106

106

(23)

130

106

(194)

¥58

¥130

¥188

¥13,051

Note: These are the appropriation of profit items covered in the annual general meeting in June of 2006.
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Footsteps of the
Combi Corporation
Sanshin Ltd. was founded in 1957 as a
manufacturer and distributor of medical
equipment and medical support products. In 1961
Sanshin acquired Mimatsu Chemicals Ltd., a firm
holding manufacturing and processing
technologies for plastic products. The merged
company began producing nursing bottles,
potties, and children's tableware under the brand
name of Combi.
This was the birth of the Combi brand. In 1968,
the firm renamed itself Combi Corporation and
started to extensively develop baby care products.
Around this time, simple tin potties were the
standard in the market, and Combi used its plastic
processing technology to produce the Swan
Potty. This instantly made "Combi baby care
products" a household word.
Combi then moved on to actively expand its
product lineup to include high chairs, baby baths,
and toys. The Company began production and
marketing of strollers in 1977 and subsequently of
child car seats in 1979 to position itself in the
market as an all-around manufacturer of baby
care products.
While retaining the baby-product business as its
core business, Combi develops and
conducts businesses aimed at serving not only
babies but all family members. Today, Combi is
expanding its business globally by operating
multiple manufacturing and marketing
bases abroad.

Sandra Stroller (1970s)

Corporate History
Dec. 1957 Sanshin Limited was founded in Shinagawa-ku,
Tokyo, with ¥2 million capitalization with the
corporate objective of manufacturing medical
apparatus and supplements, and selling
pharmaceuticals.
Apr. 1961 Sanshin moved into the manufacture, processing,
and sale of plastics, acquiring Mimatsu Chemicals
Limited. A new factory in Tsurumi-ku, Yokohama
City, began producing feeding bottles, potties, and
baby care tableware under the brand name Combi.
Mar. 1968 Company name changed to Combi Corporation.
Began production and sales of Baby Rack high
chairs.
Apr.

Head office moved to Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo.

Apr. 1970 1970 The Tsurumi Factory closed and the new
Yokohama Factory constructed in Tsurumi-ku.
(Closed September, 1994)
Jul. 1972

A new factory with increased production and
warehousing facilities established in Iwatsuki City
(currently Saitama City), Saitama.

Feb. 1977 Began production and sales of Sandra Stroller.
May 1982 Healthcare equipment sales department spun off
and Combi Health Corporation was established.
Mar. 1984 Combi entered the exercise machines market.
Production of AEROBIKE began at the Saitama
Factory.
Jun. 1985 Began production and sales of Safety Seat DX to
penetrate the child car seat market.
Jul. 1989 US sales subsidiary Combi International Corporation
established in Chicago.
Jul. 1991

Subsidiary Combi Asia Limited established in Hong
Kong as a development, production, and sales
base.

Sep.

Minami-Urawa Techno-Center opened.

Oct.

Combi shares registered with the Japan Securities
Dealers Association and listed on the OTC market in
Japan.

Jan. 1992 Combi Asia Limited began production at a new
factory situated in the special economic
development zone at Shenzhen in Guangdong
Province, China.

Swan Potty (1960s)

Apr. 1995 Combi Health Corporation name changed to Combi
Cha Cha Corporation.
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Dec.

Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., established.

Oct.

Baby Label series of baby care tableware, potties,
etc. won the Good Design Award of the Japan
Industrial Design Promotion Organization.

Dec.

Combi Cha Cha Corporation made investment in
Success Academy Co., Ltd.

Feb. 1996 Head Office moved from Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, to
Taito-ku, Tokyo.
Feb. 1997 Biotechnology Laboratory opened in Omiya City
(currently Saitama City), Saitama.
Jun.

Factory at Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toys Co.,
Ltd. began production.Takes over production from
Shenzen factory.

Jan. 2004 Combi Cha Cha Corporation obtained the goodwill
of Samantha Co. Ltd.
Feb.

US-based affiliate changed its name to Combi USA,
Inc., and moved to South Carolina.

Apr.

Combi Cha Cha Corporation changed name to
CombiWith Corporation.

Oct.

Patent on Combi Mini baby wear Wrap Crotch
obtained.

Oct.

Baby Soft Carrier Ninna Nanna F-180 received the
First Gold Prize of Good Design Award for a baby
product.

Dec.

Launch of Ribbon Casket, a new child wear brand
designed by celebrity Chiaki.

Dec. 1998 Saitama Factory obtained ISO14001 certification.
May 1999 Biotechnology Laboratory moved to Urawa City
(currently Saitama City), Saitama.
Sep.

Increased capitalization to ¥2,991.92 million by
public offering.

May 2000 Dong Guan Factory obtained ISO9002 certification.
Jul.

Began Combi Mini brand to enter and penetrate the
baby wear market.

Oct.

Began sales of functional food diet jelly Be. Quarter.

Oct.

Established the Tsukuba Distribution Center.

Dec.

Combi Cha Cha Corporation obtained ISO14001
certification.

Sep. 2001 Sales subsidiary of Combi Asia Ltd., Combi (Taiwan)
Co., Ltd. established in Taipei, Taiwan.

Oct. 2005 Good Design Award winners for 2005 included baby
chair Baby Keep Slim, diaper changing station Baby
Seat MP, baby toy Happy Palm Melody Merry+Play
Gym, soft baby carrier Ninna Nanna T-95, Junior
seat Buon Junior, and child and junior seat Buon
Kids.
Mar. 2006 Agreement signed with Konami Corporation to sell
Combi Wellness Corporation (transfer date May 31).

Oct.

Combi Wellness Corporation established.

Nov.

Combi Plaza Nakano Nursery School established by
Combi Cha Cha Corporation.

May

Nov.

Combi Wellness Corporation agreed with Nautilus
on franchise in Japan.

Dec.

Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd. began
production of high chairs.

Apr. 2007 Certified from the Health Minister for the proactive
effort of supporting child rearing toward the next
generation under the Law for Measures to Support
the Development of the Next Generation.

Patent for Combi Mini Baby wear Wrap Compact
obtained .

Mar. 2002 Promoted to the Second Section of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange from the OTC market.
Apr.

Functional Foods Division launched to expand the
functional foods business.

Oct.

New logo adopted based on the vision for the
Combi brand “to create a world where people can
enjoy and feel happy about baby care.”

Mar. 2003 Promoted to the First Section of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange.
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Main Subsidiaries
As of June 29, 2007

Domestic Subsidiaries
CombiWith Corporation
Established: May 26, 1982

President and CEO: Tomohiro Moriki

Paid-in Capital: ¥30 million

Location: Taito-ku Tokyo

Ownership: 100% owned by Combi Corporation

URL: http://www.combiwith.co.jp/

Overseas Subsidiaries
Combi USA, Inc.
Established: July 24, 1989
Paid-in Capital: US$8.5 million
Ownership: 100% owned by Combi Corporation

Combi Asia Limited
Established: July 9, 1991
Paid-in Capital: HK$15 million
Ownership: 100% owned by Combi Corporation

Chairman: Sei Kasai
Location: Hong Kong, China

Combi (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Established: December 30, 1995
Paid-in Capital: US$6.3 million
Ownership: 100% owned by Combi Corporation

Chairman: Sei Kasai
Location: Shanghai, China

Combi (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.
Established: September 12, 2001
Paid-in Capital: NT$20 million
Ownership: 75% owned by Combi Asia Limited
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Director Chairman: Sei Kasai
Location: South Carolina, U.S.A
URL: http://www.combi-intl.com/

Chairman: Yasuo Matsuura
Location: Taipei, Taiwan
URL: http://www.combi.com.tw/

Combi (Korea) Co., Ltd.
Established: February 23, 2006
Paid-in Capital: KRW 600 million
Ownership: 100% owned by Combi Corporation

Chairman: Takayuki Fujieda
Location: Seongdong-gu, Seoul, Korea

Dong Guan Combi Stroller & Toys Co., Ltd.
Established: April 14, 1994
Paid-in Capital: HK$58.863 million
Ownership: 100% owned by Combi Asia Limited

Chairman: Teruo Enomoto
Location: Guangdong Province, China

Ningbo Combi Baby Goods Co., Ltd.
Established: June 16, 1994
Paid-in Capital: US$2 million
Ownership: 100% owned by Combi Asia Limited

Chairman: Cheng Kuo Che
Location: Zhe Jiang Province, China

Organization Chart
As of July 1, 2007

Corporate Planning Division
Accounting & Financing Division
Personnel & Administration Division
IT & Work Reform Office
Child Wear Division
Internal Auditing

Juvenile Products Sales & Marketing Division
Juvenile Products Sales Department

Meeting of
Shareholders

Board of
Directors

Marketing Department
Chairman

President
Supply Chain Center
Product Development Division
Executive Board
Engineering Division

Auditors Executive Board

Quality Assurance Division
Functional Foods Division
Production, Physical Distribution Division
Environmental Management Division
Customer Service Center

Directors, Executive Officers, and Auditors
As of July 1, 2007

Chairman

Director & Managing Executive Officer

Corporate Auditors

Yasuo Matsuura

Michita Kinoshita

Toshio Kumon
Hideo Takasaki
Michiaki Tsukada

Director & Executive Officer

Sei Kasai
Executive Officers
Director (Outside director)

Noboru Kotani
President and CEO

Hiromasa Matsuura

Standing Auditor

Kazuhiko Ohfuku

Yoshichika Horino
Teruo Enomoto
Hideki Ohno
Hironobu Goshima
Ichiro Suzuki
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Shareholder Information
As of March 31, 2007

Number of shares issued by the Company

Number of shares

Major Shareholders

(Thousand)

60,000,000

Percentage of
voting rights（%）

PIP-TOKYO CO., LTD.

2,500

13.92

Shares outstanding

Matsuura Kousan Co., Ltd.

2,084

11.60

17,959,158

Matsuura Enterprise B.V.

660

3.67

P&M, Ltd.

574

3.19

Yasuo Matsuura

388

2.16

Noriko Matsushita

362

2.01

Nikko Citi Trust and Banking Corporation

351

1.95

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust Account)

338

1.88

Ecel, Ltd.

333

1.85

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

320

1.78

Number of shares constituting one unit
500

Number of shareholders
4,431

Shareholder Breakdown

Common Stock Price Range (Stock prices in the last five fiscal years)
(Yen)

Financial institutions

1,500

13.19%
Securities
companies

1.6%
Individuals
and other
shareholders

44.89%

1,000

500
Other
corporations

32.88%
0
Non-Japanese
corporations

7.44%

FY2003

FY2004

FY2005

FY2006

FY2007

Note: The highs and lows of stock prices since March 3, 2003 are those of the First Section of
the Tokyo Stock Exchange (TSE) and previously from March 20, 2002, are those of the
Second Section of the TSE. Before March 20, 2002, they are of the Japan Securities
Dealers Association.
For fiscal 2004, the stock price high is from the First Section of the TSE and the low is
from the Second Section of the TSE.

(Stock prices in the last 12 months)

(Yen)

1,200
1,000
800
600
2007

2006
Apr
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May Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Note: The highs and lows of stock prices are those of the First Section of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange.

Corporate Profile
As of March 31, 2007

Company Name: Combi Corporation
Established: December 2, 1957
Paid-in Capital: ¥2,991.92 million
Number of Employees: 247 (1,468 on a consolidated basis)
Main Business: Development, manufacture, sale, export, and technical licensing of
juvenile and ancillary products, toys, etc.
Main Transacting Banks: The Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
Mizuho Bank, Ltd.
Others
Offices: ■ Head Office
2-6-7, Motoasakusa, Taito-ku, Tokyo
111-0041
Tel. +81-3-5828-7666
■ Tokyo Office
2-6-7, Motoasakusa, Taito-ku, Tokyo 111-0041
■ Nagoya Office
1-13-18 Aoi, Higashi-ku, Nagoya-shi, Aichi 550-0014
■ Osaka Office
1-1-18 Kitahorie, Nishi-ku, Osaka-shi, Osaka 550-0014
■ Minami-Urawa Techno-Center
3-36-18 Minamiurawa, Minami-ku, Saitama-shi, Saitama 336-0017
■ Saitama Factory
271 Kagiageshinden, Iwatsuki-ku, Saitama-shi, Saitama 339-0025
■ Tsukuba Distribution Center
1341 Kokinu, Tsukubamirai-shi, Ibaragi 300-2445
■ Functional Foods Office
5-2-39 Nishibori, Sakura-ku, Saitama-shi, Saitama 338-0832

Head office

Minami-Urawa
Techno-Center
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Combi Corporation
2-6-7,Motoasakusa, Taito-ku, Tokyo 111-0041, Japan
TEL:03-5828-7666 FAX:03-5828-7665
http://www.combi.co.jp/
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